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Mission & Vision
EmEES

We believe the world of ideas is infinite and when passionate
design is integrated with advanced engineering, results
are often extraordinary. We are dedicated to elevating the
industry standards and broadening our global presence.
At the same time, we strive to bring our clients’ most
imaginative drawing concept to reality.
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Established in 1969, Far East
Global Group Limited is one of
the world’s leading speciality
engineering firms in providing
one-stop curtain wall and building
facade solution for high-end
property development projects.
The Company is running projects
in North America, South America,
Greater China, Asia as well as the
Middle East.
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Our Global Presence
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2010 was a milestone year to the Group marking our successful listing on the Main Board
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. We now have access to global capital markets which
greatly increases our competitive advantage
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Overcome Challenges

with Tremendous

Efforts and Unity
R Bk

With robust demand for high
end building facade solution, our
Group will continue to achieve
world class standard.
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Sky Plaza, Hong Kong

Chairman’s Statement
FERE

2010 marks a new chapter for the Group, our successful listing on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the substantial increases in profit
- proves our significant presence in the industry.

“E-ZERTEEMBENREN—F - ARERYREBBESRZAERLHIE
WMETBNRNER - EEEAFERTRANERE T

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present to you
the Annual Report of the Group and the financial and operating results
for the year ended 31 December 2010. This year marks a new chapter
for the Group having successfully listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. During 2010, our target markets were
adjusted from developed regions such as United States and Europe,
where building activities were subdued, to Asia and developing nations
where robust demand continued to exist for the building facade industry.
Thanks to tremendous effort and unity from every employee at our firm,
the Group achieved substantial increases in profits in 2010.
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Mandarln Orlental Hotel
Las Vegas, USA

_‘IZerw Centre, Hong Kong
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2010 marks several project milestones for the Group. Successful
completion of The Cosmopolitan of Las Vegas, our largest project to
date, has significantly elevated our reputation in the United States
as a leading firm in this space. In November 2010, we were also
awarded a building facade contract for Kai Tak Cruise Terminal Building
Project in Hong Kong. As one of Hong Kong government's “Ten Major
Infrastructure Projects for Economic Growth' this project is widely
recognised as one of the largest government-awarded building facade
contracts during recent times and is currently our largest Hong Kong
based project in terms of contract value.

The Group demonstrated great flexibility in 2010 with multiple new
project awards in Greater China, Canada and Japan, reflecting our
strategy of maintaining profitability while increasing global presence.
As at 31 December 2010, we have accumulated an impressive order
backlog of approximately HK$1.2 billion, and expect further backlog
increases in 2011.

Towards the end of 2010, the Group began to note signs of recovery
in the construction markets in North America. The Group will focus on
capturing high-margin large projects out of this region as release of
pent-up demand coincides with economic recovery. The Group is also
seeing many potential projects out of certain regions in the Middle
East and India, some of which are very sizable, that the Group will be
working hard to secure in the next 12 months. South America and in
particular, Brazil, continues to be a target market as we leverage our
Costanera Center project in Chile.

In order to maximise our ability to capture high-margin projects in
developing regions in North America and Europe, the Group is actively
examining potential mergers or acquisitions, strategic joint-ventures,
and other opportunities both within our industry as well as in the capital
markets that would result in significant elevation of our presence in
targeted regions.

Huang Brad
Chairman
28 March 2011
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Major Projects in Progress Overview
FTEFZEEBEEME

Year of
Name of Year of Actual/ Estimated
Name of Building Facade Estimated Project
Project Name'! Architecture firm Consultant Project Type Commencement Contract Sum  Completion
B BENME B/t iR
FREREN EHfiER ERER FRER BIEH AHEE KRIEH
The PRC HEl
RRARERRES Palmer and Turner Consultants Kighton Facade Consultants Co.,  Office Tower 2010 HK$56,724,000 2011
(Shanghai Lt Ltd, Shanghai HAKE
BENeRERAA(LE)ARAT e RR R AHERAR
LERREf Palmer and Turner Consultants - Multipurpose Complex 2010 HK$16,124,000 2011
(Shangha) Ltd. SWERE
BEAeRER LA L) ERAR
Hong Kong &8
Shopping Centre at Yau Tong Housing Department MFT Shopping Centre 2009 HK$90,277457 2011
Development Phase 4 REZ EE B
HERBERER MBI
Nos. 1, 3 & 5 Village Terrace and AGC Design Ltd./ DAX Residential Tower 2009 HK$41,000,000 2011
No 20 Shan Kwong Road, Happy Valley ~ TK. Tsui & Associates Ltd BN
HEBLKES  SREELNER0S  EERERHERAF/
TK. Tsui & Associates Ltd
TPTL No.187 Pak Shek Kok, Tai Po Foster + Partners/ WCWP - Residential Tower 2010 HK$22,657880 2011
AEARETPIL No. 187 International Limited frERE
Foster + Partners/
HRERES (ER)ARAT
1-5A Wilmer Street, 212 Li Sing Street &  Foster + Partners/TK. Tsui & - Residential Tower 2010 HK$31,980,000 2011
185-189A Queen's Road West Associates Limited frERE
FFIRE5AT: 22105 R Foster + Partners/
SRAER185-189A% EEHRETRIERRAR
Tai Yuen Street Redevelopment Simon Kwan & Associates Ltd - ﬁesidential 2010 HK$52,208,511 2012
BEARGER BERREMERM fig
Hong Kong Kai Tak Cruise Terminal Building  Foster + Partners/Wong Tung ALT Passenger Terminal 201 HK$368,000,000 2012
BRREHSREAR Partners Limited RERE
Foster + Partners/ T EREME T
North America 165
Trump International Hotel & Tower Zeidler Partnership Architects Halcrow Yolles Associates Hotel and condominium 2008 HK$227315,886 2011
BERDE
The Shangri-La Toronto James K M Cheng Architects Inc. Brook Van Dalen & Hotel 2008 HK$217910,726 2012
SHRSEREN Associate Limited BE
SAIT Trades & Technology Complex Gibbs Gage Architects - Multipurpose complex 2010 HK$141,729,550 2012
E2IEAN
Asia® e
Chiyoda-Ku Yonubanchou Building - - Commercil 2010 HK$10,179,000 201
(Chiyoda-4) Tokyo, Japan HARE
Tokyo Siation Yaesu Il Project - - gommercia\ 2010 HK$11,177400 2011
AARRINEN IR HAKE
South America B
Costanera Center (Tower 2) PCP ALT Office tower 2008 HK$187200,000 201
HORE
Notes: Bf3E -
(1) The scope of work undertaken in the projects set forth in the table generally involves the design, (1) RPEINOFERAEE TRHE RS REEREEENINEE RORE
fabrication, supply and installation of curtain walls and other building facade products. TR HERTE -
(2)  As used herein, Asia consists of Asian Countries/Cities excluding the Greater China region (which (2) TEHET  EMEEMNER/ BHER AR EARENE (RERE -
included the PRC, Hong Kong and Macau). B RRM)

8 Far East Global Group Limited
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Financial Highlights
R E

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1+—HILEE

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

—E-2F —TTAF —ETN\F ZETHF ZETRF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TExT THIT FHIT FHT TR

Revenue/Turnover oz & %R 866,664 860,192 1,284,709 658,641 885,109

Profit for the year ANE G | 115,410 74,659 103,134 24,763 18,379
Profit attributable to RARHEBA

owners of the Company iyl 110,113 74,288 104,993 25,043 18,379

Basic earnings per share (Note) SREAZEF|(HiFE)  HK10.45cents HK8.74 cents HK1235cents  HK295cents  HK2.16 cents

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—B-EF “ETNF —ETN\F ZETHF ZTERF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx TAT TAT FAET THIT
Total assets BEMAE 833,122 802,186 897741 502,096 463,333
Total liabilities BERE (311,807 ) (462,217) (594,203) (304,752) (292,814)
Net assets BEFE 521,315 339,969 303,538 197345 170,519
Equity attributable to owners  ANARIEE A

of the Company e 513,978 338,155 302,096 197345 170,239

Gross Profit Ratio 26.0 Net Profit Ratio Return on Equity

EFER

%

06 07 08 09 10

Financial Year
BIEE

B

%

138.3

07 08 09 10

Financial Year
BMBEE

Earnings per Share

BRER

12.35

iz E R

34.0

06 07 08 09 10

Financial Year
HREE

Financial Year
BEREFE

Note: For comparison purpose, the basic earnings per share for each of the ek -
years from 2006 to 2009 as indicated is derived by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company by 850,000,000 shares, being
the number of shares in issue after the capitalisation issue immediately
before the global offering of the shares of the Company in March

2010.

BELER  UEH-_ZETEANFE_TTAEEF
B2 BREREF THIEAR RS ARG RS
850,000,0008% k5 * BIBE—T—TF=A4XRQ
AR M BEREERETEMEBITR ZEBITRG
#HH -

BREREEERAT 9
—E-BEEH



Continuous

Efforts to Shine
The World
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The Group will continue to
leveragethe successincompleting
the world’s landmarks and capture
growth opportunities.
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Management Discussion And Analysis
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Management Discussion
And Analysis
BEENWR DN

Mr. KWOK Yeung Kwong, Chief Executive Officer ZB{NYe5E4 1TE4EE,

Profit attributable "1
e HK million
BEAEMRT - 5

During the reporting year, the Group is proud to announce the successful
completion of a number of landmark projects including Cosmopolitan
Resort Hotel & Casino in Las Vegas, Trinity Plaza in San Francisco, Marina
Bay Sands Integrated Resort in Singapore, The One and Kerry Centre in
Hong Kong, and Shanghai IFC (North Tower) in Mainland China which
have led to encouraging results. Profit for the year attributable to the
owners of the Company in 2010 reached a new peak to approximately
HK$110.1 million, a significant increase of approximately 48.2% as
compared to last year.

12 Far East Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2010
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With the healthy order book built up from the many new projects secured
in 2010, and with the optimistic construction market together with the
following core competitiveness of the Group, the Group believes that
2011 and 2012 will be years of growth and expansion. First, world class
technical knowhow and global project track record enable the Group
to win landmark projects on a worldwide basis, which usually offer
attractive margins due to their complexity and quality requirements.
Second, the innovative design capability of the Group, which has been
accumulating from more than 450 accomplished projects, enables it to
identify margin expansion opportunities while the projects are ongoing.
Third, the Group's procurement and production in China, together with
its long established suppliers’ relationship and network, have provided
it with substantial cost advantage against its competitors. Fourth, the
Group possesses highly qualified international project management
teams which are rich of experience to overcome climate, cultural,
language and regulatory differences of managing projects in various
regions. Finally, the Group implements a stringent cost control system,
which together with its excellent project management capability, enables
it not only to meet but also exceed with positive surprise on project
deadlines and budgets in most cases.

=Marina Bay Sands, Singapore
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WIZW TR MExEIENEREREESREY
RIS REFE - £ AEBAAIFREEE
71 BREERTE T B RRIB450EEE - FTAAI
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F= o REBRPBSETRERAEE - B0 LEE
EEELRANBRRAE  SAEEERE KN
FELEMBFHFEAES - FH - NEEHE
TeEmEREEEEEK B2 8REATRIL
BARE Xt BEABEELNER &% K
EEMEHEBRBOKNANEH RS VEAHEEEMNT
BB UBCTERERERMERMEXE
REFEE - MATALLTERREE -

ERBHREBARA 13
—F-FEEH



Management Discussion And Analysis

BERE W&k DT

During the reporting year, benefiting from the implementation of 10
infrastructure projects and the boomed residential property market in
Hong Kong, the Group has been awarded KaiTak Cruise Terminal Building
Project with the contract value of approximately HK$364 million, which
has become the Group's largest Hong Kong based project in terms of
contract value to date. The Group also secured other 8 new projects with
a total contract sum of approximately HK$332.7 million during the year
including SAIT Trades and Technology Complex in Calgary, Canada, &%=
IR 55 and £FEFT in Shanghai, the PRC, Tokyo Station Yaesu
[I'and Chiyoda-Ku Youbanchou Building in Tokyo, Japan as well as three
residential projects in Hong Kong awarded by Kerry Properties Limited,
Chinese Estates Group and a consortium led by Nan Fung Group. As at
the date of this report, the Group’s outstanding contracts in hand has
an aggregate remaining value of approximately HK$1,226 million.

The Group will continue to participate in the development of coming
projects in Hong Kong like Hong Kong Section of Guangzhou-Shenzhen-
Hong Kong Express Rail Link in Western Kowloon District, the commercial
and residential developments in Kai Tak District and Western Kowloon
Cultural District. The Group will also seek expansion opportunities in
other regions, especially those tallest building projects in Saudi Arabia
and India. Leveraging on our success in completing the tallest building
in the world — Burj Khalifa, the Group will be highly competitive amongst
its peers in winning these upcoming landmark projects. The global
building facade market will continue to provide enormous opportunities
due to the urbanization of emerging countries like China, India and Brazil
and the eventual recovery of the commercial activities in the US and
Europe. With cash and liquid assets of close to HK$447 million and debt
free, the Group is well positioned and well prepared to capture these
ample growth opportunities through increasing its marketing resources,
building up strategic alliances, planning to expand its production capacity
and continually seeking suitable merger and acquisition targets.

14 Far East Global Group Limited
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Management Discussion And Analysis

BERE W&k

REVENUE AND GROSS MARGIN

The revenue slightly increased by approximately HK$6.5 million, or
approximately 0.76 %, from approximately HK$860.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2009 to approximately HK$866.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2010. The increase is mainly due to the major
projects in progress such as the Costanera Center in Chile, the Yau
Tong Shopping Centre project in Hong Kong, and the Shangri-La Toronto
and SAIT Trades & Technology Complex projects in Canada starting to
contribute to the revenue in the second half of the year.

Gross profit continued to grow approximately 17.4% to approximately
HK$225.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2010 from
approximately HK$192.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2009.
This is mainly due to the satisfactory margins achieved in the US
projects like Cosmopolitan Resort Hotel and Casino project in Las Vegas,
Trinity Plaza project in San Francisco, The One project and Kerry Centre
project in Hong Kong, Shanghai IFC (North Tower) project in Mainland
China and Marina Bay Sands Integrated Resort project in Singapore
of which the installation works were successfully completed in 2010.
Thanks to the dedicated effort of our innovative design teams and
well-experienced project management teams, which combined with
our ability to win landmark projects with high margins, our stringent
cost control system, and our PRC sourcing and production, enable us
to complete our projects with satisfactory margins while at the same
time deliver total customers’ satisfaction.

SEGMENT ANALYSIS

Revenue derived from Greater Chinaincreased by approximately HK$83.0
million, or approximately 31.5%, from approximately HK$263.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2009 to approximately HK$346.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2010. The increase in revenue
was primarily due to the recognition of revenues from a number of
sizable projects such as Shanghai IFC (North Tower) project and Kerry
Centre project in 2010. The gross margin in Greater China increased
from approximately 13.8% in 2009 to approximately 20.7% in 2010 as
a result of profit contribution from the said projects and the increase
of the contract amount from certain previously completed projects in
Macau.

WERER
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Management Discussion And Analysis

BERE W&k DT

Revenue derived from North America decreased by approximately
HK$65.7 million, or approximately 14.6%, from approximately HK$451.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2009 to approximately
HK$385.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2010. The
decrease in revenue was primarily due to a substantial portion of
the work of our projects in the U.S. like Cosmopolitan Resort
Hotel & Casino project in Las Vegas had been performed in 2009 and
our new projects in Canada like the Shangri-la Toronto project and
SAIT Trades & Technology Complex project started to contribute to
the revenue only in the second half of 2010. As a result of the margin
expansion achieved in Cosmopolitan Resort Hotel & Casino project and
other US projects, the gross margin in North America region further
increased to approximately 33.6% in 2010 as compared to approximately
28.5% in 2009. While the recovery of US market is still uncertain, the
Group has achieved satisfactory progress in expanding its project reach
in Canada, from Toronto to Calgary and potentially to other cities like
Vancouver. The newly-designed window wall system of the Group has
been used to bid for luxury residential projects in Canada.

Revenue derived from Asia decreased by approximately HK$70.8 million,
or approximately 56.3%, from approximately HK$125.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2009 to approximately HK$55.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2010. The decrease in revenue was primarily
due to the fact that substantial portion of the work of the Darwish Tower
and the Sama Tower projects were completed in 2009. Performance in
Asia region significantly improved in 2010 as compared to the last year.
The gross margin in Asia region increased from approximately 7.8% in
2009 to approximately 14.8% in 2010 as a result of profit contribution
from the Marina Bay Sands Integrated Resort project. Although the
Dubai market is not expected to recover within a short period of
time, there are still many exciting landmark project opportunities in
Asia, including the going to be the tallest building in India and Saudi
Arabia.

16 Far East Global Group Limited
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Management Discussion And Analysis

BERE W&k

Revenue derived from other regions increased by approximately HK$60.0
million, or approximately 297.1%, from approximately HK$20.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2009 to approximately HK$80.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2010. The increase in revenue was
primarily due to the recognition of revenues from the Costanera Center
(Tower ll) project resumed in 2010. In 2009, the revenue of this segment
mainly represented the one-off compensation paid to the Group for work
previously performed prior to the suspension of the Costanera Center
project. In the remaining markets of the world, the Group is actively
exploring business opportunities especially in Brazil who will host the
2014 FIFA and the 2016 Olympic Games.

OTHER INCOME

Other income was approximately HK$21.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2010 (2009: approximately HK$7.1 million), representing
an increase of approximately HK$13.9 million as compared to last
year. The increase was mainly due to a gain on disposal of an unused
office premises of the Group in Hong Kong of approximately HK$9.5
million, and recovery of bad debts of approximately HK$3.3 million
during the year.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Other operating expenses for the year ended 31 December 2010
represented one-off listing expenses of approximately HK$18.7
million.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group’s administrative
expenses were approximately HK$90.5 million (2009: approximately
HK$97.4 million), representing a decrease of approximately 7.1% as
compared to last year.
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BERE W&k DT

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The effective income tax rate (i.e. the total income tax expense divided
by profit before tax) of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2010 was approximately 16.1% (2009: approximately 24.1%). This was
primarily due to an increase in non-taxable income related to the gain on
disposal of the property in Hong Kong and the effect of recognition of
Hong Kong Profit Tax not previously provided for recognised in 2009.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2010 amounted to approximately HK$110.1 million (2009:
approximately HK$74.3 million), representing a rise of approximately
48.2% over last year. Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2010 was HK10.45 cents (2009: HK8.74 cents), representing
a rise of approximately 19.6% over last year.

The Group’s financial position remained sound over the year. As at
31 December 2010, the Group had net current assets amounted to
approximately HK$438.0 million (31 December 2009: approximately
HK$267.1 million) with improvement in current ratio (total current assets
over total current liabilities) to approximately 2.4 times at 31 December
2010 (31 December 2009: approximately 1.58 times). Total bank and
cash balances, pledged time deposit and current portion of available-
forsale investments at 31 December 2010 amounted to approximately
HK$446.9 million (31 December 2009: approximately HK$387.5 million),
representing an increase of approximately 15.3%.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group's equity attributable to owners
of the Company amounted to approximately HK$514.0 million (31
December 2009: approximately HK$338.2 million), comprising issued
capital of approximately HK$11.2 million (31 December 2009: HK$10,000)
and reserves of approximately HK$502.8 million (31 December 2009:
approximately HK$338.1 million).
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The Group was debt-free as at 31 December 2009 and 31 December
2010. The Group's banking facilities are mainly utilized for the issue of
documentary credits for purchase of materials, bid bonds for potential
projects and performance guarantees for existing projects. As at 31
December 2010, the Group had total banking facilities of approximately
HK$471.5 million with an undrawn balance of approximately HK$303.3
million. With the strong and healthy position, the Group has sufficient
resources in support of its working capital requirement and to meet
its foreseeable capital expenditure.

As at 31 December 2010, certain time deposits and available-for-sale
investments of the Group with a net carrying value of HK$82.7 million
(31 December 2009: HK$57.1 million) and HK$24.1 million (31 December
2009: HK$26.4 million) respectively have been pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group employed a total of 329 (2009:
412) employees. The Group has sound policies of management
incentives and competitive remuneration, which aligns the interests
of management, employees and shareholders' alike. The Group sets its
remuneration policy by reference to the prevailing market conditions and
the performance of the individuals concerned, subject to review from
time to time. The components of the remuneration package consist of
base salary, allowances, fringe benefits including medical insurance and
contributions to pension funds as well as incentives like discretionary
bonus and participation in share options.
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BERE W&k DT

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group's foreign currency exposures primarily arise from certain
sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other than the
unit's functional currency where these sales or purchases are mainly
denominated in United States dollar, Renminbi, United Arab Emirates
dirham, Canadian dollar and Singapore dollar.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the Group monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currencies should the need arise.
During the year, the Group entered into a forward exchange contract
with a commercial bank to hedge RMB appreciation for a 24-month
period beginning in January 2011.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUANG Brad, aged 46, joined the Group as a Director on 11 March
2008, and was subsequently designated as chairman of the Board, an
executive Director and a member of the Company’s Remuneration and
Nomination Committee on 10 March 2010. He is primarily responsible
for the overall strategy of the Group. Mr. Huang is the brother of
Mr. Huang Guangyu, a non-executive Director. Mr. Huang obtained a
Bachelor of Science degree in Physics from Zhejiang University in 1985,
a Master of Arts degree in Economics from Georgetown University in
1987 and a Master of Business Administration degree from the School
of Management in Yale University in 1990. Mr. Huang is a Sterling
Fellow of Yale University, where he also serves as a board member of
Yale School of Management Board of Advisors and the Chairman of its
Greater China Advisory Board. He is also a member of the President'’s
Council on International Activities at Yale University.

Prior to joining us, Mr. Huang was a research assistant at the Hudson
Institute, a strategic think tank in Washington D.C. Mr. Huang also
worked as an investment banker at Goldman, Sachs & Co. and Credit
Suisse. In 1994, Mr. Huang founded Lotus Capital Management, which
manages private equity funds investments in Greater China, and has
been its chief executive officer since 1994.

Mr. KWOK Yeung Kwong (Z8{01¥), aged 53, was appointed as a
Director and chief executive officer of the Company on 11 March
2008 and was subsequently designated as an executive Director and
a member of the Company’s Remuneration and Nomination Committee
on 10 March 2010. Mr. Kwok joined the Group since 1982 and has over
25 years of experience in curtain wall engineering technology, project
management and aluminium production.

Mr. Kwok obtained a certificate for advance studies in Curtain Wall and
Windows Systems and Architectural Metal Products from the United
States Aluminium Corporation in 1991. Mr. Kwok served as the Group's
director, executive director for China projects and operation director
from 1992 to 1997 1998 to 1999 and 2000 to 2007, respectively. Mr.
Kwok is the chief executive officer and director of Far East Aluminium
Works Co. Ltd.
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Mr. KO Chuk Kin, Herbert (SJ£88), aged 48, was appointed as a
Director on 8 March 2010 and was subsequently designated as an
executive Director on 10 March 2010. He is also the commercial director
of the Group. Mr. Ko has over 20 years of experience in quantity
surveying and contract administration. Mr. Ko joined the Group since
March 1996 and is responsible for our business development, tendering,
contract administration and other related commercial duties. Mr. Ko is a
member of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators, the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and is
a Registered Professional Surveyor. Mr. Ko received his Bachelor of
Science degree in Quantity Surveying from the University of Glamorgan,
the United Kingdom in 1987 and a Bachelor of Laws degree from the
University of Wolverhampton, the United Kingdom in 1998.

Mr. CHIU Lok Man (##££3), aged 43, was appointed as a Director
on 8 March 2010 and was subsequently designated as an executive
Director on 10 March 2010. He joined the Group in 2002 and is now
also the design director of the Group. Mr. Chiu has over 21 years of
experience in the building facade industry. Mr. Chiu is experienced in
design-project management and is mainly responsible for our resources
planning, costs control, design feasibility investigation and development.
In 2004, he was awarded our Company’s Annual Design Award for
the new product design in the Langham Place project. Mr. Chiu also
participated in the project design of the Burj Khalifa project in Dubai.
Mr. Chiu was qualified as a member of Chartered Institute of Building
(CIOB) in the United Kingdom in 2000.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. HUANG Guangyu (ZEF), aged 40, joined the Group in March
2009 and is currently the non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Huang is the brother of Mr. Huang Brad, an executive Director. Mr.
Huang is a director of Lotus Capital Finance Corp., Mr. Huang obtained
a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from Zhejiang
University in 1992. From 1992 to 1996, Mr. Huang served as the sales
manager of the Eastern China region at the representative office of Mars
Inc. in Shanghai. From 1996 to 2004, Mr. Huang worked as the executive
vice president of CSK Systems (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. ("CSK") where he is
responsible for overseeing the development and day-to-day operations
of CSK. From 2004 to 2006, Mr. Huang served as the general manager
of Hangzhou Development Centre of SinoCom Shensoft Computer
Technology (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. (“Hangzhou Development Centre")
where he was responsible for the development of the Hangzhou
Development Centre and monitoring of its day-to-day operations. Since
2006, Mr. Huang has been serving as the vice-president of Shanghai
MBP Software Co., Ltd. and general manager of Lot Software Systems
(Hangzhou) Co., Ltd.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHOU Jinsong (E)#2), aged 40, was appointed as a Director on
8 March 2010 and was subsequently designated as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 March 2010 and the chairman of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committee on 10 March 2010. Mr. Zhou
graduated from Guangdong Radio and TV University (B R EEZH A L)
in 1992 and a Master of Business Administration degree from Harbin
Institute of Technology (Y5 E8/E T % X22) in 2003. Mr. Zhou is a Certified
Public Accountant licensed in the PRC.

Mr. Zhou has extensive experience in accounting, audit and business
advisory in various audit firms and private companies in the PRC. Mr.
Zhou was an accountant supervisor in the fund management office of
the Shenzhen Cultural Development Department (Z3IHE @ XL FH %
BHREBFIFESEE /AP AE) from 1995 to 2002. Mr. Zhou is currently
the vice president of Zhongmao, an accounting firm in Shenzhen. From
January 2009 to January 2011, Mr. Zhou was acting as an independent
non-executive director of Macau Investment Holdings Limited (P9
BERRAIR AT, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. YEN Homer Shih Hung (BEttZ), aged 52, was appointed as a
Director on 8 March 2010 and was subsequently designated as an
independent non-executive Director on 10 March 2010 and a member of
our Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committee on 10 March 2010.
Mr. Yen graduated from the Southern California Institute of Architecture
with a Master 's degree of Architecture in 1986. Mr. Yen is a professional
architect licensed in California, a member of the American Institute of
Architects and a member of the Royal Architectural Institute of Canada.
Mr. Yen is an experienced real estate developer and has over 15 years
of experience in architectural design, development and marketing of
a wide variety of real estate projects in Southern California. Mr. Yen
was responsible for a diverse portfolio of award winning projects with
construction sites in excess of 2,000 homes.

Mr.Yen is currently the chief executive officer of First Pacific Homes, LLC,
and the president and chief executive officer of HomerYen + Architects,
Inc., a professional architecture firm in Southern California. Mr. Yen
received the Builder of the Year Award in 2005 and the Professional
Excellence Award in 2008 from the Chinese American Construction
Professionals.
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Mr. HONG Winn, aged 41, was appointed as a Director on 8 March 2010
and was subsequently designated as our independent non-executive
Director on 10 March 2010 and a member of the Company's Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committee on 10 March 2010. Mr.
Hong obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Aerospace Engineering
and a Master of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from the
University of California, Los Angeles (the "UCLA") in 1993 and 1996,
respectively. Mr. Hong graduated from the University of Chicago with a
Master of Business Administration degree in 2005. Mr. Hong is a senior
technology development manager for the Alfred E. Mann Institute for
Biomedical Engineering at the University of South California (AMI-USC)
focusing on biotechnology, medical device, and medical and health care
technologies. Mr. Hong has over eleven years of experience in high-tech
product development and high-tech start-up success and leadership.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. FONG Johnson, aged 31 is the vice president — finance & business
development of the Group. Mr. Fong joined the Group in September 2010
and is responsible for the Group's finance and business development.
He has over 6 years of corporate finance experience and has previously
worked at investment banks in Hong Kong and New York. Mr. Fong
received his Master of Science in Financial Engineering degree from
Columbia University, United States in 2004 and a Bachelor of Science
in Electrical Engineering degree from Washington University, United
States in 2001.

Mr. LAU Chi Hong (27 E8), aged 40, is the financial controller of
the Group. Mr. Lau has over 15 years of experience in accounting,
auditing, and finance. Mr. Lau had worked for one of the big four
international accounting firms prior to joining us in 1999. Mr. Lau is
responsible for our overall accounting and financial functions of the
Group. Mr. Lau is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. Mr. Lau
received his Master of Science degree in Financial Management from
the University of London in 1998 and a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree
in Accountancy from The City University of Hong Kong in 1993.
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Mr. LAU Sai Ying, Alan (21t E£), aged 50, is the marketing director of
the Group. Mr. Lau has over 18 years of engineering and facade system
project management experience in Canada and Hong Kong, Mr. Lau
joined the Group in 1997 and is responsible for the Group’s international
marketing in exploring and enhancing the existing and new global
markets with reference to his strong global marketing experience in this
industry. Mr. Lau is a member of Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
and a registered professional engineer in Hong Kong. Mr. Lau received
his Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering from the University
of Manitoba, Canada in 1981.

Mr. Ronald G. KLOEPPER, aged 65 is the Chief Technical Director of the
Group. Mr. Kloepper joined the Group in September 2010 with over 45
years of experience in the facade industry ranging from manufacturing
and contracting to consulting. Mr. Kloepper has been in Hong Kong since
1991, providing professional facade consulting services to developers,
architects and contractors throughout the Asia region and in the United
States. Mr. Kloepper oversees all technical aspects of the Group from
initial design conception and drawing production to fabrication and site
quality control. He strongly believes in providing a pragmatic design
that embraces architectural aesthetics while achieving the required
technical performances, ultimately meeting or exceeding any client’s
expectations.

Mr. HUI Kin Wai (5FE1&), aged 50, is the technical director of the
Group. Mr. Hui has been in the curtain wall industry since 1980, and
has designed and successfully tested more than 100 types of window
and curtain wall systems. Mr. Hui acquired his extensive training and
experience in the U.S. and he joined the Group in 1988. Mr. Hui is
currently the head of our technical department and is responsible for
the technical support to the curtain walls and business system design
and development. With his in-depth knowledge of the curtain wall
systems and business, Mr. Hui has been promoted as the technical
director of the Group in 2006.

Mr. CHAN Sun Nung (FR¥&E), aged 51, is the technical director of
Dubai Branch of the Group. Mr. Chan has over 29 years of experience
in curtain wall design and extensive profound knowledge in the facade
industry. Mr. Chan joined us in 2003 and is responsible for the designs
and overall supervision of our facade project of Burj Khalifa, currently
the world’s tallest building. Mr. Chan was the council member of Hong
Kong Facade Association from 2005 to 2007. Mr. Chan received his
Master degree in Construction Engineering and Management from
Griffith University, Australia in 2006.
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Mr. TIE Loon Seong (&%), aged 50, is the project director and the
president of the Canadian Branch of the Group. Mr. Tie has over 20
years of experience in project management and he joined the Group in
1989. From 1989 to 1995, Mr. Tie served as a project manager in some
of the major projects undertaken by the Group including the Pacific
Place 2 project, the Times Square project and the Harbour Plaza Hotel
Office Tower 1 & 2 projects. Mr. Tie then left our Group and rejoined
our Group as a senior project manager in 1998 and is currently the
head of our project department and is responsible for managing our
curtain wall projects of the major commercial property developments
in North America. Mr. Tie holds a Diploma in Civil Engineering from
Federal Institute of Technology in Malaysia in 1986.

Mr. MOK Wai Him (B2 3#), aged 50, is the project director (Hong Kong
Projects) of the Group. Mr. Mok has over 22 years of experience in project
management. He joined the Group in 1996 and is now responsible for
the overall project the management for projects undertaken in Hong
Kong. Mr. Mok is a member of the Institute of Measurement and Control
in the United Kingdom. Mr. Mok received his Bachelor of Science degree
in Applied Physics from the University of Essex, United Kingdom and
a Master degree in Instrumentation and Analytical Science from the
University of Manchester Institute of Science and Technology, United
Kingdom in 1986.

Mr. CHONG Ming Ting (3£ 35#€), aged 47, is the production director of
the Group. Mr. Chong has over 19 years of experience in the production
and fabrication of aluminium products. Mr. Chong joined the Group
in 1985 and is responsible for our daily industrial and production
management for the factory in Shenzhen, the PRC.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAM Tin Faat, aged 35, has been appointed as the company
secretary of the Group since February 2011. Mr. Lam is a fellow of
both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom,
as well as a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. He received his Bachelor in Accountancy from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has over 10 years experience in
auditing, accounting and financial management, gained from a number
of accounting firms in Hong Kong, a company listed in Hong Kong and
a company listed in Singapore.
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OVERVIEW

The Company is dedicated to achieving high corporate governance
standards to promote corporate accountability, transparency and
integrity. The Board recognizes that good corporate practices are
fundamental to the smooth and effective operation of the Group and
the protection of the interests of shareholders and stakeholders.

Since the shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 30 March 2010 (the
"Listing Date"”) and throughout the rest of 2010, the Company complied
with the code provisions and, where appropriate, adopted some of
the recommended best practices set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the
Stock Exchange. This report outlines our current corporate governance
policies and practices.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the standard for securities
transactions by Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries
of all the Directors and all the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code and
its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions since
the Listing Date.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) takes responsibility for the
leadership and control of the Group and oversees all major matters
thereof, including the formulation and approval of overall business
strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and monitoring
the performance of the senior management. The management is
responsible for the daily operations of the Group under the leadership
of the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ"). The Directors have the
responsibility to act objectively in the interests of the Company.
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Currently, the Board comprises eight Directors, including four executive
Directors namely Mr. Huang Brad, Mr. Kwok Yeung Kwong, Mr. Ko Chuk
Kin, Herbert and Mr. Chiu Lok Man, one non-executive Director namely
Mr. Huang Guangyu and three independent non-executive Directors
namely Mr. Zhou Jinsong, Mr. Yen Homer Shih Hung and Mr. Hong
Winn. Mr. Huang Guangyu is the brother of Mr. Huang Brad, being the
executive Director. Mr. Huang Brad and Mr. Kwok Yeung Kwong, both
being the executive directors, were appointed as the Chairman and the
CEO respectively. The names and biographical details of the Directors
are set out in the section entitled “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report.

In compliance of Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Board currently
includes three independent non-executive Directors representing more
than one-third of the Board. Pursuant to paragraph 12B of Appendix 16
to the Listing Rules, each of the independent non-executive Directors
has confirmed by confirmation that he has the independence criteria
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Directors consider that all three independent non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with the independence
criteria in accordance with the Listing Rules and are capable to
effectively exercise independent judgement. In addition, amongst the
three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Zhou Jinsong has
the appropriate professional qualifications and accounting and related
financial management expertise required under Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules.

Therefore, the Board believes that there is a balanced composition of
executive and non-executive directors to ensure that sufficient checks
and balances present within the Board.

BOARD MEETING

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings regularly
for at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-
hoc meetings are also convened if necessary to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of the Group.
Directors participate in the Board meetings either in person or through
electronic means of communications. Since the Listing Date and for the
rest of the year of 2010, nine full board meetings were held and the
statistic of the attendance has been set out in the below section.

Notices of Board meeting are sent to all Directors at least 14 days
prior to regular Board meetings. Reasonable notices have been given
to the Directors for ad-hoc Board meetings. All directors are given
an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for regular board
meeting.
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The Company provides adequate, complete and reliable information to all
the Directors relating to the matters to be discussed before each board
meetings. All the Directors are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties. They have full access to the advices and services
of the company secretary of the Company with a view to ensuring the
board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
Procedures have also been agreed by the Board to enable Directors
to, in appropriate circumstance and upon reasonable request, seek
independent professional advice to assist in discharging their duties to
the Company at the Company's expenses.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are
kept by a duly appointed secretary of the meeting and available within
a reasonable time after the board meetings are held. The minutes
record in sufficient details the matters considered by the board and
decision reached. They are open for inspection by any Director upon
reasonable notice.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a specific term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date. All of their appointments are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Company.

The non-executive Director and each of the independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a fixed term of two years commencing from
the Listing Date. They are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman and the
CEO should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Mr. Huang Brad, the Chairman of the Company, is primarily
responsible for the formulation of the overall strategies and policies
of the Company and monitoring the performance and operation and
management of the Group. Mr. Kwok Yeung Kwong is the CEO of the
Company and his role is to oversee and involve directly in the overall
management of the Group.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the board
committees including the audit committee (the "Audit Committee”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) (collectively,
the “Board Committees”). Further details of these committees are set
out below:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 10 March 2010
with effect from the Listing Date in compliance with Rules 3.21 to
3.23 and Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are, among other things, to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and internal control system of the Group.
The Audit Committee is also responsible for making recommendations
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor,
reviewing the auditor’s independence and objectivity and monitoring the
non-audit functions performed by the external auditor for the Group.

The Audit Committee currently consists of all three independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. Zhou Jinsong is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and Mr. Hong Winn and Mr. Yen Homer Shih Hung are
members.

Since the establishment of the Audit Committee, it reviewed both the
interim and annual consolidated financial statements for the Group prior
to recommending the same to the Board for approval, approved the re-
appointment of the external auditor and reviewed the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control system. In the course of review, the Audit
Committee had met with the external auditor without the presence of
any Executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the confirmations given by
the controlling shareholders, namely Showmost Group Limited, LCF
Il Holdings, Limited and Lotus China Fund Il, L.P in respect of their
compliance with the deed of non-competition undertaking as disclosed
in the Prospectus of the Company.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 10 March
2010 with effect from the Listing Date in compliance with Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are to evaluate and make recommendations to the Board regarding the
compensation of the CEO and other executive Directors. In addition,
the Remuneration Committee conducts reviews of the performance of
the senior management and the compensation structure for both senior
management and staff in general.

The remuneration policies for the Directors and senior management
members have been based on their experience, level of responsibility
and general market conditions. Any discretionary bonus and other
merit payments are linked to the profit performance of the Group and
the individual performance of the Directors and senior management
members. The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Zhou Jinsong
as the Chairman, Mr. Hong Winn, Mr. Yen Homer Shih Hung, Mr. Huang
Brad and Mr. Kwok Yeung Kwong as members.

Since the establishment of the Remuneration Committee, it reviewed
the remuneration policies and structures, including the level of pay
rise, the offer of share options and discretionary annual bonuses for
the CEQO, the executive directors, the senior management and other
staff in general.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 10 March 2010
with effect from the Listing Date.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board on a regular basis and to make recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes, to identify and make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorship, to assess the independence of non-executive directors
and to make recommendation as to the appointment or re-appointment
and succession plan of directorship. The Nomination Committee
comprises Mr. Zhou Jinsong as the Chairman, Mr. Hong Winn, Mr.
Yen Homer Shih Hung, Mr. Huang Brad and Mr. Kwok Yeung Kwong
as members.

Since the establishment of the Nomination Committee, it considered the
structure, size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence
of the Independent non-executive directors and recommended the
Board relating to the rotation of directorship.

FHEES

ARABEREBELETRUMEFTOR —F—FTF=A
TERZHMEZES - B LM BEMEAEN - FE
EEMTIERERMNHITRARKEMRITESH
B YRAEFSRHEERER - I HFMEE
TR EMEEABNRR  IBERER K
BITHH AR -

EEREAERENEBNTMECR DRBEHESENK
B BARER—MRTRMSIET o FAWBELELR
HAubSEE R D IE A SR EFNRBRAUREERS
TEEEKEBMNERREMER - THEE8SHE
& BSR4 A BB BHong Winnde 4 ~ BBt R 56
4  Huang Bradst 4 M Py AL A 4R ©

BFEZ B SRR - HINE 8 e EMT IR R
B BENFKEARMTRESR  ATES -
SREEBAEREM—REIRLBERERNEF
[ETEAT »

REEET
ARARER-—ZT-TF=FTHRIREZEZES® "
B HERAR -

RAZEENTZRERTHENESTSMHERS R
B (BIEREE - MBRERFE) - WHEM
BELMZMESSREEEER  RYelst
RESHEFERNAZNESSRHEERBER
FEIENTEEN B EURREETEARENE
ARESEATEREEBER - REZEEHE
& BSR4 A R K BHong Winn%e 4 « BBt R 4G
A~ Huang Brad%c 4 N 2MP S SE A 4R ©

BRAZEERINR REZEGEERESTEN
22 REEANK  FEBEYIFRTEENE M
UEmEESRHESTHERTIER -

BREREEERAT
—E-BEEH



Corporate Governance Report
TRERBE

The attendance of individual members of the Board and other Board T%®#&HJ E LM BABEHEEZ_T—SF+_A=+
Committees meetings for the year ended 31 December 2010 sincethe —HIE ' AKX EREFCREMBEETEZE S L H
Listing Date is set out in the table below: ZHEE
Meeting(s) attended/held
HE RITHES
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee

Ezg EREEE FHEES REZEE

Executive Directors HITES
Huang Brad Huang Brad 9/9 - 1/2 11
Kwok Yeung Kwong NS 9/9 - 1/2 11
Chiu Lok Man HHEE 9/9 - - -
Ko Chuk Kin, Herbert DR 9/9 - - -
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Huang Guangyu HETF 9/9 - - -
Independent Non-Executive BIUKHITES

Directors
Zhou Jinsong EESEA 9/9 2/2 2/2 11
Yen Homer Shih Hung el 9/9 2/2 2/2 11
Hong Winn Hong Winn 9/9 2/2 2/2 1Al

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROL B3R & R A BREE#=

FINANCIAL REPORTING SRS

The Board, supported by the Financial Controller and the finance EBEEQEMGARERAEEMBFIHBFINTET &
department of the Group, is responsible for the preparation of the E#RELAEFHERE - AR R LR BB REE -
consolidated financial statements. In the preparation of consolidated B RMFERF B wEHER - TEMERBEEN G
financial statements, International Financial Reporting Standards have BEREERR T ZEZTTEENBBRENFE K
been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies and statutory ~HFHIREH - HAELEERKRR - MR RASIEHA
requirements have been consistently complied with. The Board aims  1E * /EM R 2 EAFEE - WERELHE R QM -
to present a balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the

Group's performance, position and prospects in the annual and interim

reports to the shareholders, and make appropriate disclosure and

announcements in a timely manner.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

RSM Nelson Wheeler has been re-appointed as the external auditor of
the Company. In connection with the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2010, the total fees in respect of audit and non-
audit services provided to the Company and its subsidiaries by RSM
Nelson Wheeler are set out as follows:

Services rendered

BB AT =

TiIHEE(RA)EMEBMORENRZELSAR
ANEREM - MBE T -TF+ _A=+—H
LFENMBRERME - FHREE(FL) S

BARMARE RENERRRHHNERZMIERZR
BB FERRNAT

Fees paid/payable

R A ER eft/ERER
HK$
BT
Annual Audit for the year ended 31 December 2010 900,000
HEZZFT_A=+—RALEFENFEEZ
Non-audlt services
FEEZIRT
— interim review for the six months ended 30 June 2010 200,000
-HEZZE-ZEFA=+HILEAEATHEE
— Other services 203,000
- Efth AR 75
Total 1,303,000
#eEt

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for ensuring a sound and effective internal
control system in the Group to safeguard the Group's assets and
shareholders’ interest. Procedures have been designed to ensure
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication, ensure compliance
of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

After reviewing the Group'’s internal control system, the Board considers
that the internal control system is effective and adequate for the
Group as a whole. The Board further considers that for the year ended
31 December 2010, (i) there was no issue relating to the material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions, of the Group; and (ii) that there were adequate
staff with appropriate qualifications and experience, resources in the
Company's accounting and financial reporting function, and adequate
training programmes have been provided.
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DIRECTORS” AND EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010, which
were prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards.
The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor of the Company
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in
the independent auditor’s report on pages 47 to 48.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

The Company has been confirmed by Showmost Group Limited, LCF
Il Holdings, Limited and Lotus China Fund Il, L.P that (i) each of the
party has complied with the undertakings contained in the Deed of
Non-Competition dated 10 March 2010 executed by them in favour of
the Group; and (i) each of them and/or any of their associates is not
offered or becomes aware of any new project or business opportunity
that compete or may compete with the business carried out by the
Group i.e. the provision of integrated building facade services and
products in any part of the world in which the Group carried out the
business.
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The Directors present herewith the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 49.

On 25 February 2010 and 12 March 2010, the Board declared dividend
of HK$24 per share amounting to HK$24,000,000 and special dividend
of HK$198.6 per share amounting to HK$198,600,000 respectively
to the then existing shareholders, namely Showmost Group Limited,
Starflash Investment Limited and Full Mission Limited. Such dividends
were distributed on 1 March 2010 and 1 April 2010 respectively.

An interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per share amounting to approximately
HK$16.7 million was paid to the shareholders in October 2010.

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK1.5 cents
per share for the year ended 31 December 2010 to the shareholders
of the Company whose names appear in the register of members
of the Company on Tuesday, 31 May 2011, subject to approval of
the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. It is expected that the payment of the final dividend will be
made on or before 13 June 2011.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company has waived
or agreed to waive any dividends.

GLOBAL OFFERING AND USE OF PROCEEDS

In March 2010, the Company conducted a global offering of its shares
which included the sales of 361,898,000 ordinary shares, comprising
271,750,000 new shares issued and allotted by the Company and
90,148,000 sale shares offered by our then existing shareholders of the
Company at an offer price of HK$1.18 per share. Net proceeds raised
available for the Company were approximately HK$283.5 million. The
ordinary shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 30
March 2010 (the “Listing Date").
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As stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 17 March 2010 (the
“Prospectus”), the Company intends to use the proceeds for working
capital of new projects, potential mergers and acquisitions, establishment
of new production facilities, establishment of research and development
division and general working capital requirement. Up to 31 December
2010, the Company had utilised approximately HK$35.6 million and
HK$3.4 million for working capital of new projects and for research
and development of new products respectively. The Company is in the
process of planning and identifying suitable targets for the intended
usage for the rest of the proceeds.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out on page 118.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND PREPAID
LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment and prepaid land lease payments of the Group are set
out in notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements during the year in the share capital and share
options of the Company are set out in note 29 and 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Details of movements during the year in the share premium and reserves
of the Group and the Company are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 53 and note 30(B) to the consolidated
financial statements on page 105 respectively.

The Company's reserves available for distribution comprise the share
premium account and accumulated losses. As of 31 December 2010,
the reserves of the Company available for distribution to shareholders
amounted to HK$245,809,713.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Huang Brad (Chairman)
Mr. Kwok Yeung Kwong
(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ko Chuk Kin, Herbert (appointed on 8 March 2010)
Mr. Chiu Lok Man (appointed on 8 March 2010)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Huang Guangyu

Independent Non-executive

Directors
Mr. Zhou Jinsong (appointed on 8 March 2010)
Mr. Yen Homer Shih Hung (appointed on 8 March 2010)
Mr. Hong Winn (appointed on 8 March 2010)
Notes:

All Directors, including those appointed on 8 March 2010, were retired and re-
elected in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 22 June 2010.

In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years, at every annual general meeting one-third of the Directors
for the time being shall retire from office by rotation and shall be eligible for
offerings themselves for re-election. Details of the Directors to be retired and
seeking for re-election in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting are contained
in the circular dispatched together with this annual report.

Information regarding emoluments paid during the year ended
31 December 2010 is set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior management of the Company
are set out on pages 21 to 26.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Directors consider all three independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date and renewable automatically for successive terms of
one year each commencing from the day following the expiry of the
then current term unless and until (i) terminated by either party thereto
giving not less than three months’ prior written notice, with the last
day of the notice falling on the last day of the initial term or any time
thereafter; or (i) the Director not being re-elected as a Director or
being removed by Shareholders at general meeting of our Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

All the independent non-executive Directors and the non-executive
Director of the Company are appointed for a fixed term of two years
commencing from the Listing Date and are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates, has engaged
in any business that competes or may compete with the business of
the Group, or has any other conflict of interest with the Group.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURE

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant
to a resolution in writing passed by all then shareholders on 10 March
2010 with effect from the Listing Date. A summary of key terms of the
Scheme and the movement of share options for the year are set out in
the note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. Other than the
Scheme at no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or
its parent company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
(including their spouse or children under 18 years of age) to hold any
interests or short position in the shares or underlying shares in, or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND WARRANTS

As of 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions (and the
deemed interests and short positions) of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company in any shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(with the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
were as follows:

EERKRG - BRRGRDRER N E
m

RIZE-ZEF+-_A=+—H FRAEFKIZ
TTRABRARBSEEEBER(EERES R
HIE R0 ([ &7 R B G D FEXVER) N ERARD -
HEROREFPEBARRARBES K E K
{515 352{F M E L AZIGHIFTIENELCMA - RE
RAESTRIZABAANR R LR e RS MoAR (MR
R SORR)IT

Approximate

Number of Securities percentage of
of the Company share holding
Name Capacity (Long position) in the Company
HE 513 RAEQTZ RAERTN
HHEHE (IFR) BARR
Bkt
(note 1)
(KysE1)
Huang Brad Interest of controlled corporation 93,196,125 (note 2) 8.35%
Huang Brad SEREE S (K152)
Beneficial Owner 10,000,000 (note 4) 0.90%
E=AA (Kt5t4)
Kwok Yeung Kwong (“Mr. Kwok") Interest of controlled corporation 93,196,125 (note 2) 8.35%
PR (TEAE]D) R EE S (Kt5E2)
Beneficial Owner 15,633,625 (note 3) 1.40%
E=AA (K17%3)
25,000,000 (note 4) 2.24%
(HizF4)
Ko Chuk Kin, Herbert Beneficial Owner 7.264,000 (note 5) 0.65%
=R E=AA (K17%5)
3,000,000 (note 4) 0.27%
(HizF4)
Chiu Lok Man Beneficial Owner 7.650,000 (note 5) 0.69%
FHEEST E=AA (K17%5)
1,800,000 (note 4) 0.16%
(HizF4)
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Note

1. The percentage figures are calculated based on 1,116,108,000 shares in
issue as of 31 December 2010.

2. Full Mission Limited was a substantial shareholder of the Company which
was owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang (Chairman and an executive Director)
and as to 50% by Mr. Kwok (an executive Director and the chief executive
officer of the Company). Accordingly, both Mr. Huang and Mr. Kwok were
deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company (“Shares”) held
by Full Mission Limited.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief and having
made all reasonable enquiries, among the Shares for which Mr. Kwok
was deemed to be interested, Mr. Kwok was beneficially interested in
46,900,875 Shares pursuant to a declaration of trust executed by Full
Mission Limited in favour of him (as more particularly described in the
section headed “History, Reorganization and Group Structure” of the
Prospectus).

3. Long position represents the Shares directly held by Mr. Kwok as of 31
December 2010.

4. Long positions represent share options held by the respective Directors.
Details of terms and movement of the share options were set out in note
31 of the consolidated financial statement.

5. Long positions represents the beneficial interests in Shares as disclosed.
To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief and having
made all reasonable enquiries, among the beneficial interested disclosed,
5,737500 Shares separately for each of Mr. Ko Chuk Kin, Herbert and
Mr. Chiu Lok Man were held in trust by Full Mission Limited pursuant to
a declaration of trust executed by Full Mission Limited in favour of each
of them (as more particularly described in the section headed “History,
Reorganization and Group Structure” of the Prospectus).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of Directors
and chief executive of the Company or their associates had or deemed
to have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’

SHARES

INTEREST IN

As of 31 December 2010, the following shareholders (other than
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) had or were deemed
to have interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company, which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of SFO:

FERR 2RO ER

RIB-Z2F+-A=+—8 " UATERR(BFEELQH
B THRAE AN AR A BB D P
BRRRHEE AN RBAREE S MG R E3361%

FUEFEELMANERIAR

Number of Securities
of the Company

Approximate
percentage of
share holding

Name Capacity (Long position) in the Company
mE LB 54 RAEARZ RAEARN
BEEAE (FR) BAORR
ATt
(note 1)
(Kiat1)
Showmost Group Limited (note 2) Beneficial Owner 338,750,000 30.35%
Showmost Group Limited(#7:22) E=EAA
LCF Il Holdings, Limited (note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 338,750,000 30.35%
LCF I Holdings, Limited(#:#2) REHEERER
Lotus China Fund Il, L.P (note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 338,750,000 30.35%
Lotus China Fund II, L.P(f##£2) REHEERER
Full Mission Limited (note 3) Beneficial owner 93,196,125 8.35%
Full Mission Limited (#/4£3) EmEa A
Yuen Mary (note 4) Interest of spouse 108,829,750 9.75%
RIEH (Hzt4) [kt e 25,000,000 2.24%
Huang Chen Wei Lay, Bernadette Interest of spouse 93,196,125 8.35%
{note 5) [kt e 10,000,000 0.90%
EIRUE TS 5E5)
China Overseas Insurance Limited Beneficial Owner 103,920,000 9.31%
("COIL) (note 6) EmEa A
R EUEIMRIREIR A R ([HFRR )
(Ktite6)
China State Construction Interest in controlled corporation 103,920,000 9.31%

International Holdings Limited

(“CSCIHL") (note 6)
PEREEREEFR AT
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Number of Securities

Approximate
percentage of

of the Company share holding

Name Capacity (Long position) in the Company
"L LB 513 RAEQTZ RAERTMN
BHEHE (FR) BARR
Bkt
(note 1)
(K15E1)
China Overseas Holdings Limited Interest in controlled corporation 103,920,000 9.31%
(“COHL") Ry HEE S
FEEINEE AR A A
([hEEINEE D)
China State Construction Interest in controlled corporation 103,920,000 9.31%
Engineering Corporation Limited — SZE#iAE#EZS
("CSCECL') (note 6)
PEIRZERND AR AR
(TR’ 1) (HiEEe)
China State Construction Beneficial Owner 103,920,000 9.31%

Engineering Corporation

BaEEAA

("CSCEC") (note 6)
REEETRERNR([FREE])
GER)

Note

42

The percentage figures are calculated based on 1,116,108,000 shares in
issue as of 31 December 2010.

Long Positions represents the Shares held by Showmost Group Limited.
To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief and having
made all reasonable enquiries, Showmost Group Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in BVI and was wholly-owned by LCF Il Holdings,
Limited (which in turn was wholly-owned by Lotus China Fund II, L.P).
Accordingly, under the SFO, both LCF Il Holdings, Limited and Lotus
China Fund Il, L.P were deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Showmost Group Limited.

Full Mission Limited was a limited liability company incorporated in BVI
and was owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang (Chairman and an executive
Director) and as to 50% by Mr. Kwok (an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company). Accordingly, both Mr. Huang and Mr.
Kwok were deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Full Mission
Limited. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief
and having made all reasonable enquiries, among the Shares for which Mr.
Kwok was deemed to be interested, Mr. Kwok was beneficially interested
in 46,900,875 Shares pursuant to a declaration of trust executed by Full
Mission Limited in favour of him.
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4. Madam Yuen Mary, the spouse of Mr. Kwok was deemed to be interested
in 108,829,750 Shares and 25,000,000 of share options of the Company.
Details of the nature of interests of Mr. Kwok are set out in section
"Substantial Shareholders’ Interest in Shares” above.

5. Madam Huang Chen Wei Lay, Bernadette, the spouse of Mr. Huang was
deemed to be interested in 93,196,125 Shares and 10,000,000 of share
options of the Company. Details of the nature of interests of Mr. Huang are
set out in section “Substantial Shareholders’ Interest in Shares” above.

6. COIL is the cornerstone investor of the Company in the Global Offering.
As at 31 December 2010, COIL was a wholly-owned subsidiary of CSCIHL,
a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. CSCIHL was held as to 62.06%
by COHL which was in turn a wholly-owned subsidiary of CSCECL. CSCECL
was held as to 54.07% by CSCEC. Accordingly under the SFO, both CSCIHL,
COHL, CSCECL and CSCEC were deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by COIL.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified for any
interests or short positions being held or being deemed to be held by
any substantial shareholder (not being a Director or chief executive of
the Company) in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
at 31 December 2010.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS, RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS

CONTINUING CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTION

During the year, the Group has engaged FAZREIRE TIRARET
A 7] (English transliteration for identification purpose: Xi'an Yuanheng
Aluminium Works Company Limited) (“Xi'anYuanheng") in the provision
of design services in relation to our products and projects. The terms
of the construction engineering design service were determined after
arm’s length negotiation and on normal commercial terms prevailing
in the PRC and by reference to the charging scale prescribed by
Shenzhen Decoration Association (&I T2 8% €). On 10 March 2010,
the Company and Xi'an Yuanheng entered into a master agreement
expiring on 31 December 2012 for the provision of design service on
a non-exclusive basis and on the terms described above. The details
of such transaction were set out in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” in the Prospectus.
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By virtue of Xi"anYuanheng holding of 25% equity interests in Netfortune
(Shanghai) Aluminium Works Company Limited, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Xi’an Yuanheng upon listing is regarded as
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Since
each of the applicable percentage ratios based on the relevant annual
cap as set out below is expected to be less than 2.5%, the provision
of the design services is exempt from prior independent Shareholders'
approval requirement set out in Rule 14A.48 of the Listing Rule. On
listing of the Company, the Stock Exchange granted the Company a
waiver pursuant to Rule 14A.42(3) to exempt the aforesaid transaction
from compliance with the relevant announcement requirements, subject
to the Company’s compliance of Rules 14A.35(1), 14A.35(2), 14A.36 to
14A.40 of the Listing Rules in relation thereto.

In respect of Rule 14A.35(2) of the Listing Rules, the maximum aggregate
value or the annual cap, for such continuing connected transaction shall
not exceed the applicable limit of HK$5.5 million, HK$6.5 million and
HK$7.9 million for each of the three years ending 31 December 2012
respectively. The fee payable to Xi'an Yuanheng for the year under review
amounts to HK$3,111,082.

The aforesaid continuing connected transaction has been reviewed by
independent non-executive directors of the company. The independent
non-executive directors confirmed that the aforesaid connected
transaction was entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group; (b) on normal commercial terms; and (c)
in accordance with the relevant master agreement governing the
transaction on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interest of
the shareholders of the company as whole.

The Company’s external auditor was engaged to report on the aforesaid
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Review of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor's Letter on Continuing
Connected Transaction under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued an unqualified letter to the Directors confirming that the aforesaid
continuing connected transaction (a) had received the approval from the
Board of Directors; (b) were in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group; and (c) had been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing such transaction; and (d) had not exceeded the
annual cap as disclosed in the above. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The above transaction for the year did not constitute a related party
transaction according to International Accounting Standard 24 “Related
Party Disclosures”
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Save as above, the Group has also entered into certain related party
transactions which have been disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements. After the listing of the Company, these related
party transactions either did not constitute connected transactions under
the Listing Rules or were discontinued prior to the Listing Date.

There has been no contracts of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or the controlling shareholder of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly and there were
no contract of significance for the provision of services to the Group
by the controlling shareholders of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date this report, there
is sufficient public float of the Company’s issued shares as required
under the Listing Rules.

CHARITABLE DONATION

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to
HK$1,000,000.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders by reasons of their holding of the Company's shares.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report of the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
is set out on pages 27 to 34.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2010, the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 69.4% of the Group's turnover and turnover from the
largest customer included therein accounted for approximately 24.7%.
The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
53.6% of the Group's total purchases for the year and the Group's
purchases from the largest supplier included therein accounted for
approximately 29.0%.
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At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) have an
interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Subsequent to the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2010, the
Company repurchased 5,642,000 ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange
at an aggregate consideration of HK$3,646,140. The highest and the
lowest price paid per share were HK$0.67 and HK$0.62 respectively.
The repurchases were effected by the Directors for the enhancement of
shareholders’ value. All the said shares were repurchased in June 2010
and were subsequently cancelled. The nominal value of repurchased
shares of HK$56,420 has been debited to the share capital and the
remaining HK$3,5689,720 has been debited to the share premium of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Company since the Listing Date.

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year, there were no material investments and acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of the significant subsequent events of the Group are set out
in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution to re-appoint Messrs. RSM Nelson Wheeler as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

On behalf of the Board of

Far East Global Group Limited
Huang Brad

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report
8 A% BLEm R

RSM Nelson Wheeler
FimEE(FERB)S MBI

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
FAR EAST GLOBAL GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Far East
Global Group Limited (the “Company"”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 117, which comprise
the consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2010, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2010 and of the Group's results and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement

e laER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE =T —ZEF+-_A=+—HILFE

2010 2009
—g-8F  —TThF
Notes HK$ HK$
i BT 7SI
Revenue/Turnover e~ Y4+ < - 6 866,664,104 860,191,699
Cost of sales SHEBA (640,992,821)  (668,038,461)
Gross profit ER 225,671,283 192,153,238
Other income EHablr A 7 21,005,519 7,083,692
Administrative expenses THAX (90,533,546) (97,420,984)
Other operating expenses HEMageEms (18,656,750) (3,400,000)
Profit from operations R A 137,486,506 98,415,946
Finance costs b A A 8 - -
Profit before tax BADER 137,486,506 98,415,946
Income tax expense s Hif X 9 (22,076,940) (23,756,726)
Profit for the year FRRA 10 115,409,566 74,659,220
Profit for the year attributable to: DT & HEEREEZR
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIEZZE DN 12 110,113,165 74,287,799
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M A 5,296,401 371,421
115,409,566 74,659,220
Earnings per share: SREF :
Basic (HK cents) 2R () 14 10.45 8.74
Diluted (HK cents) #E OB) 14 10.37 N/AT3E B
ERRBEMEMAT | 49
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZ=—

==
= =

FH=A=t+-ALEE

2010 2009
—E-2F ZETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Profit for the year FREF 115,409,566 74,659,220
Other comprehensive income: Hit 2w
Exchange differences on translating MEGINETS 2 B 5 =R
foreign operations 738,049 675,954
Release of investment revaluation HE R EIRE R
reserve to profit or loss upon HESHFEEETER
disposal of available-for-sale
investments (431,262) -
Fair value changes of available-forsale A HERE 2 AT EZ S
investments 474,396 450,138
Other comprehensive income FREMEE KR - HBRHE
for the year, net of tax 781,183 1,126,092
Total comprehensive income FREERBEE
for the year 116,190,749 75,785,312
Total comprehensive income AT &FEEZFAZERRAHE
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARIER A 110,667,748 75,413,891
Non-controlling interests FEIE R A 5,523,001 371,421
116,190,749 75,785,312
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R

At 31 December 2010 R=ZE—ZF+=-A=+—H

2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
Notes HK$ HK$
BaE BT BT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment I EN YN 15 33,311,866 41,264,027
Prepaid land lease payments TEf -t AR & 5RIE 16 - 1,886,672
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 17 47,889,176 26,786,042
Rental and utility deposits e kKBRS 2,077,977 2,973,011
83,279,019 72,909,752
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 19 79,708 68,772
Non-current assets held for sale HIELEZIERBEE 20 2,897,383 2,803,922
Gross amount due from customers phEm T2 R P 2%
for contract work 21 86,183,900 65,901,529
Trade and retention receivables B 2 W M IR € 22 172,192,065 249,834,506
Prepayments, deposits and AR« e REMERGK
other receivables 41,518,874 23,058,513
Current tax assets AEAFHIB & 2 68,671 102,180
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 17 - 14,761,000
Pledged time deposits B E BT 5K 24 82,683,621 57,061,570
Bank and cash balances RITRIB B R 24 364,218,996 315,684,190
749,843,218 729,276,182
Current liabilities FREBAE
Gross amount due to customers AN TREENE BT
for contract work 21 132,883,727 261,756,950
Trade and bills payables B SN M EN R 25 52,127,627 49,262,007
Current tax liabilities AEATIIE B 1R 35,365,370 46,189,755
Warranty provision IRFE RS 26 15,189,986 12,630,124
Other payables and accruals H e 3R R ERTE 76,240,475 92,377,995
311,807,185 462,216,831
Net current assets REEEFE 438,036,033 267,059,351
NET ASSETS BEEFRE 521,315,052 339,969,103
Capital and reserves EARREE
Share capital &N 29 11,161,080 10,000
Reserves G 30 502,816,796 338,144,928
Equity attributable to owners ARAREEB AELRER
of the Company 513,977,876 338,154,928
Non-controlling interests RS 7,337,176 1,814,175
TOTAL EQUITY A 521,315,052 339,969,103
Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2011 HESFER-_T—F=A=+/\Bi#tE
HUANG Brad KWOK Yeung Kwong
SR
Director Director
EF =
BREREEERAT | g
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Statement of Financial Position

BFEEAR R AR

At 31 December 2010 R=F—TF+=A=+—H

2010 2009
—E-=EF —ETNF
Notes HK$ HK$
B=E BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RSB AR RER 18 48,657,939 43,652,000
Current assets REEE
Due from subsidiaries FEUHT B A BRI 23 224,892,110 180,298,549
Prepayments, deposits and TR -« Ze REMERGR
other receivables 367,543 -
Bank and cash balances RIT RIS 66,683 19,230
225,326,336 180,317,779
Current liabilities REBE
Other payables and accruals H e IR K ERT B 210,000 =
Due to subsidiaries FEASTBT 8 A B15kIE 23 6,671,742 46,421,662
6,881,742 46,421,662
Net current assets REEEFE 218,444,594 133,896,117
NET ASSETS EEFEE 267,102,533 177548,117
Capital and reserves EXRRHE
Share capital &N 29 11,161,080 10,000
Reserves ] 30 255,941,453 177.538,117
TOTAL EQUITY fERBE 267,102,533 177548,117

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZE =%

—ZFE+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LGN
Foreign
Share  Share-hased  Investment currency Proposed
Share  premium payment  revaluation  translation  Statutory  Retained final Non-controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserves profits dividend Total interests equity
DY
HER R He
R BEEER  AEEE  EGREE  ERRE  iERE  REEA EERERS B EREE  ER4E
HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HKS
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
At 1 January 2009 RZZENE
-A-A 147264000 96,605,896 - (31709%) 3,646,503 1213 20884270 34,000,000 302,09,707 1,442,754 303,538,461
Total comprehensive FREANEES
income for the year - - - 450,138 675,954 - 1287799 - T5A13891 3421 75,785,312
Issue of shares (note 29 &fRA(E2) 10,000 - - - - - - - 10,000 - 10,000
Repurchase of shares BER(A
note 29) (HizE29) (147264,000)  137264,000 - - - - - - (10,000,000) - (10,000,000)
Share-hased payments MR AR
(note 31) (RtzE31) - - 4635330 - - - - - 4635330 - 4635330
2009 proposed final ZETNEEE
dividend (note 13) RRE(H3) - (24,000,000 - - - - - 24,000,000 - - -
Dividend paid Bfifk& = = = = = = - (34,000,000) (34,000,000 - (34,000,000)
Changes in equity EMERZY
for the year (147254,000) 113,264,000 4,635,330 450,138 675,954 - 74287799 (10,000,0000 36,059,221 31421 36,430,642
At 31 December 2009 RIZENE
and at 1 January 2010 T2A=t-Rk
R5-3%
-A-A 10,000  209,869,8% 4,635,330 133,042 4,322,457 1213 95,172,069 24000000 338154928 1814175 339,969,103
Total comprehensive EREENRES
income for the year - - - 43134 511,449 - 110,113,165 - 10,6678 5523001 116,190,749
Capitalisation issue BRI 8490000 (8490,000) - - - - - - - - -
Issue of shares (note 29) &7 RA(HE2) 2715500 317947500 - - - - - - 320665000 - 320,665,000
Share issue expenses OEEE - (18018450) - - - - - - (18018,450) - (18,018450)
Repurchase of shares BER(A
(note 29) (HizE29) (66,4200 (3,589,720) = = = = = - (3,646,140) - (3646,140)
Share-hased payments MR AR
note 31) (RtzE31) - - 5,496,410 - - - - - 5,496,410 - 5,496,410
2010 proposed fina T3-TEEE
dividend (note 13 RERE(H13) - (16,741,620) - - - - - 16162 - - -
Dividends paid BiikE - (215,341,620) - = = = - (24,000,000) (239,341,620) - (239,341,620)
Changes in equity EMERZY
for the year 151,080 55,766,099 5,496,410 43134 511,449 - 110,113,165 (71258.380) 175,822,948 5523001 181,345,949
At 31 December 2010 R-E-%&
tZA=t-H 11,161,080 265,635,986 10,131,740 176,176 4,833,906 12134 205285234 16741620 513977876 7331176 521,315,062
BREREEMARAT | gy
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE =T —ZEF+-_A=+—HILFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —TTNF
HK$ HK$
BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REX¥KvHERE
Profit before tax AR A 137,486,506 98,415,946
Adjustments for: HEE
Listing expenses iiliaha 18,656,750 -
Interest income FBMA (1,888,348) (1,005,354)
Gain on disposal of available-forsale HERHHERE R
investment (584,963) -
Net (gain)/loss on disposals of property, HEWE  BEK
plant and equipment RfE(Wam) / BiEFE (9,046,364) 264,483
Warranty provision REBERE 2,950,126 6,618,726
Depreciation, net of amounts capitalised e HREBEAMEE
to long term contracts REIG /A 2,642,740 2,875,787
Amortisation of prepaid land A L A E R
lease payments - 210,005
Inventories (written back)/written off FE(BE),/ (258,684) 140,416
Impairment of property, M - BEREERE
plant and equipment - 3,400,000
Provision for impairment of trade B o5 RBA R ERRE S
and retention receivables RERE 2,539,844 4,305,107
Provision for impairment of trade and B o5 RBA R ERRE S
retention receivables written back BB R (3,330,976) (556,800)
Share-based payments PARR D BER T 5,496,410 4,635,330
Operating profit before working capital changes 2B & & EE)FIL LG 154,663,041 119,303,646
Decrease/(increase) in rental and utility deposits & RKERE R/ (3EM) 895,034 (223,779)
Decrease in inventories FERD 247,748 587,745
Decrease in net gross amount due from AR TRERRENESFERD
and due to customers for contract work (144,312,924) (169,657,153)
Decrease in trade and retention receivables B ZENG R ERR B SR 78,433,573 160,620,267
Increase in prepayments, deposits AR - ke RE AN N
and other receivables (19,045,803) (4,528,389)
Decrease in amount due from a related party [EW @ E A T FURR D - 5,327,220
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables BHEARRENZELN (RD) 2,865,620 (8,966,368)
Decrease in warranty provision RERERD (390,264) (4,548,046)
(Decrease)fincrease in other Hib RS RETERCRD), 80
payables and accruals (15,426,150) 19,424,161
Cash generated from operations BEEEZAS 57,929,875 117,339,304
Income tax paid BT H (33,119,025) (8,250,664)
Interest paid BFE - (12,111)
Net cash generated from operations REEEZRSFR 24,810,850 109,076,529
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 H#E=Z—TF+-_A=+—HIFE

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETHF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEBRZEERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEMF « BEREHE (1,693,206) (3,495,339)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BEAHNERE (23,400,000) (22,561,000)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HENE - BE REEMEZE
plant and equipment 13,442,858 1,026,335
Proceeds from disposals of HER Mt EREGHE
available-for-sale investments 17,685,963 2,340,000
Interest received BEUFIE 1,499,583 1,005,354
Increase in pledged time deposits BEATERFFEM (25,622,051) (18,872,170)
Net cash used in investing activities REFBMAZRE TR (18,086,853) (40,556,820)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ®BEZB<HERE
Issue of shares BTG 320,665,000 10,000
Repurchase of shares BEEKR (3,646,140) (10,000,000)
Share issue and listing expenses BHBETR ETRY (36,675,200) -
Dividend paid BT S (239,341,620) (34,000,000)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEFEE(FTH)
financing activities ZIREFRE 41,002,040 (43,990,000)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND REeRBEEEYIEMNEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 47,726,037 24,529,709
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SR [ S A B 2 808,769 627396
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ENREREEEEYN
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 315,684,190 290,527085
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESRESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 364,218,996 315,684,190
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND BeRBEEENIM
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RIT IR 0 364,218,996 315,684,190
BREREEARAT | g
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56

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office
is PO. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands. The address of its principal place of business is 16/F, Eight
Commercial Tower, No. 8 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong.
The Company's shares have been listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 30 March 2010.

During the year, the Group was involved in the facade contracting
business, including the design, engineering, manufacture and
installation of curtain wall systems made primarily of fabricated
aluminium cladding, stainless steel and glass.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31 December
2010, Showmost Group Limited (“Showmost”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, is the immediate parent;
Lotus China Fund Il, L.P, a private equity fund incorporated in
the Cayman Islands, is the ultimate parent and controlling party
of the Company.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) that are
relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting year
beginning on 1 January 2010. IFRSs comprise International Financial
Reporting Standards; International Accounting Standards (“IAS");
and Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised IFRSs
did not result in significant changes to the Group’s accounting
policies, presentation of the Group's financial statements and
amounts reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective. The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of these new IFRSs but is not yet in a
position to state whether these new IFRSs would have a material
impact on its results of operations and financial position.

Far East Global Group Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investments
which are carried at their fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the directors to exercise its judgements in the process
of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving critical
judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these financial statements, are disclosed in note 4
to the financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below.

(A) CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. Control is the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group has control.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (i) the
Company's share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any
remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any related
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

58

(A)

(B)

CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement
of changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company's ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the
owners of the Company.

In the Company's statement of financial position the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
()  FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$"), which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.

Far East Global Group Limited
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(B)
(1)

(1)

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION (Continued)

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES IN EACH ENTITY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gain and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on
a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

TRANSLATION ON CONSOLIDATION

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company's presentation currency are translated into
the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

—  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that statement of financial
position;

- Income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

—  All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve.

3. FEEHBE®E)

(B)
(1)

(1)

ISR (4F)

REERUTBERIIXE R

SNER BIMINRIERR AR HE B2
PERFEIMKINBEEHE o AINEFTRREY
EREENMBBREREHRNEE
S o RIS R ERRE A R W as I B
B AREA

BAHERMSNETHERN FFEHIAE
TREEEATEEANEREZE -

EIFEREENREREREREME
iz AFERRS - U S IR E
AT B 34, B £ 71 7 EL At 2 T b 2 P T
R EFERIEA MRS ERER
m AR - R ERNEAE
SRR TR R R ©

AREREMEE

g B EA R RN 25 EBE R
FTEREBEBHEERVBEIRNR
DR T ARRERRATNENNE
e

- BUBHARRMEZINEER
BEHRZMBHRRREER
ETE RIGE

- BRERANKRARFEZIRT
B R E (B IFFI9E R RaE
EERMUARZEREXRTE

ZRFHE EREBERT WK

ARRXERRZ 5 E BMEXK

g Rk

- BMEMEANELZFEINI
HIE R R ARER o

ERBHREBARA .
—F-FEEH



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZ=—

T-FEt A=t ALEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

60

(B)

(C)

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION (Continued)
(Ill) TRANSLATION ON CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities
and of borrowings are recognised in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

All property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The principal useful lives are as follows:

Freehold land
Land and buildings

Not depreciated
Over the lease terms

Leasehold improvements 4 years
Plant and machinery 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 4 -5 years
Tools and moulds 4 years
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(C)

(D)

(E)

(F)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and machinery pending installation,
and is stated at cost less impairment losses. Depreciation
begins when the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and
the assets are available for immediate sale in their present
condition. The Group must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of the assets’ previous carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

OPERATING LEASES

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for
as operating leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

INVENTORIES

Inventories for construction contracts, comprising raw
materials and consumables, are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out basis. Net realisable value is determined by reference
to the underlying specific contracts in progress in which the
inventories will ultimately be used.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(G) CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

62

(H)

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, contract costs are recognised as an expense by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract at the end
of the reporting period. When it is probable that total contract
costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately. WWhen the outcome of
a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the reporting
period are recorded in the statement of financial position at
the amount of costs incurred plus recognised profits less
recognised losses and progress billings, and are presented
in the statement of financial position as “Gross amount due
from customers for contract work" When progress billings
exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised
losses, the surplus is recorded in the statement of financial
position as “Gross amount due to customers for contract
work" Progress billings not yet paid by the customer are
included in the statement of financial position under “Trade
receivables” Amounts received before the related work is
performed are included in the statement of financial position
under “Trade payables”

RECOGNITION AND DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

N

(J)

INVESTMENTS

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an investment
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
investment within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets not classified as trade and other receivables, held-
to-maturity investments or financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Available-forsale financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value of these investments are recognised
in other comprehensive income, until the investments are
disposed of or there is objective evidence that the investments
are impaired, at which time the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
recognised in the profit or loss. Interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for equity
investments classified as available-for-sale financial assets
are not subsequently reversed through profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for debt
instruments classified as available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently reversed and recognised in profit or loss
if an increase in the fair value of the instruments can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition
of the impairment loss.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market and are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment. An allowance
for impairment of trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. The amount of the allowance is the
difference between the receivables’ carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. The
amount of the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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(J)

(K)

(L)

(M)

(N)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the
receivables' recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the
receivables at the date the impairment is reversed shall not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument under IFRSs. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

BORROWINGS

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Financial guarantee contract liabilities of the Company are
measured initially at their fair values and are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

- the amount of the obligations under the contracts, as
determined in accordance with IAS 37 "“Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and

— the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the terms of the guarantee contracts.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

(P)

(Q)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue from a fixed price contract is recognised
using the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the percentage of contract costs incurred to
date to the estimated total contract costs for the contract;
and revenue from a cost plus contract is recognised by
reference to the recoverable costs incurred during the period
plus an appropriate proportion of the total fee, measured by
reference to the proportion that costs incurred to date bear
to the estimated total costs of the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that is probable to be recoverable.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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(R)

(S)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
()  EMPLOYEE LEAVE ENTITLEMENTS

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(ll) PENSION OBLIGATIONS

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries. The retirement benefit scheme cost
charged to profit or loss represents contributions
payable by the Group to the funds.

(lll) TERMINATION BENEFITS

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan
which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments
to certain directors and employees. Equity-settled share-
based payments are measured at fair value (excluding the
effect of non market-based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined
at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to business partners are
measured at the fair value of the services or if the fair value
of the services rendered cannot be reliably measured, at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted. The fair value is
measured at the date the Group receives the services and
recognised as expense.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(T)

(V)

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group
that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

TAXATION

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

68

(U) TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(V)

(W)

RELATED PARTIES
A party is related to the Group if:

(i)  directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
the party controls, is controlled by, or is under common
control with, the Group; has an interest in the Group
that gives it significant influence over the Group; or has
joint control over the Group;

(i) the party is an associate;

(i) the party is a joint venture;

(iv) the party is a member of the key management personnel

of the Company or its parent;

(v)  the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (i) or (iv);

(vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or

(vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the

benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity that
is a related party of the Group.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except
assets arising from construction contracts, investments,
inventories and receivables to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(W) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (Continued)

70

(X)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow is remote.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved) 3. EEETBE(#)

(Y) EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made judgements relating to accounting for variation orders
of construction contracts that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

The Group makes claims for additional work performed, which may
arise either under specific circumstances provided for under the
contracts or due to variation made to the contract specifications
by customers. Where the amounts of such claims have not
been formally agreed at the end of reporting period, the amount
recoverable as estimated by management is included in the
contract value in determining the estimated profit or foreseeable
loss on the contract.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.
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72

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
(A) REVENUEANDPROFITRECOGNITION OF CONSTRUCTION

(B)

(C)

CONTRACTS

The Group estimated the percentage of completion of
construction contracts by reference to the proportion that
contract costs incurred for work performed to date to the
estimated total costs for the contracts. \When the final cost
incurred by the Group is different from the amounts that were
initially budgeted, such differences will impact the revenue
and the profit or loss recognised in the period in which
such determination is made. Budget cost of each project
will be reviewed periodically and revised accordingly where
significant variances are noted during the revision.

INCOME TAXES

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES FOR BAD AND DOUBTFUL
DEBTS

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
based on assessments of the recoverability of the trade and
retention receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each debtor. Impairments
arise where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. The identification
of bad and doubtful debts requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the actual result is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of the trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the period in which such estimate has been
changed. If the financial conditions of the debtors were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be required.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(D)

(E)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives and
residual values of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation
charge where useful lives and residual values are different to
those previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT EXPENSES

The fair value of the share options granted to the directors
and employees at the respective date of grant is expensed
over the vesting period with a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based payment reserve.

In assessing the fair value of the share options granted,
the Black-Scholes option pricing model (the “Black-Scholes
Model”) was used. The Black-Scholes Model is one of the
generally accepted methodologies used to calculate the fair
value of the share options. The Black-Scholes Model requires
the input of subjective assumptions, including the expected
dividend yield and expected life of options. Any changes in
these assumptions can significantly affect the estimate of
the fair value of the share options.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
(F) FAIR VALUE AND IMPAIRMENT OF INVESTMENTS

The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-sale
investments and changes in their fair values are recognised
as other comprehensive income. The fair value of unlisted
available-forsale investments is determined with reference
to the quoted market price or secondary market redemption
price as provided by the issuer of the underlying investments.
When the fair value declines, management makes judgement
to determine whether there is an impairment that should be
recognised in profit or loss.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(A) FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group's foreign currency exposures primarily arise from
certain sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the unit’s functional currency, where these sales
or purchases are mainly denominated in United States dollar
and Renminbi, United Arab Emirates Dirham, Canadian dollar
and Singapore dollar.

In view of the fact that the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to
the United States dollar, the Group's exposure on United
States dollar transactions and balances to foreign currency
risk is minimal.

At 31 December 2010, if Hong Kong dollar had weakened/
strengthened 5% against United Arab Emirates Dirham and
Canadian dollar with all other variables held constant, the
consolidated profit after tax for the year would have been
HK$15,655 (2009: HK$1,589,258) and HK$1,744,787 (2009:
HK$1,517.224) higher/lower, respectively.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(A)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK (Continued)

At 31 December 2010, if Hong Kong dollar had weakened/
strengthened 5% against Renminbi with all other variables
held constant, the consolidated profit after tax for the year
would have been HK$923,690 (2009: HK$388,914) lower/
higher.

At 31 December 2010, if Hong Kong dollar had weakened/
strengthened 5% against Singapore dollar with all other
variables held constant, the consolidated profit after tax for
the year would have been HK$485,254 lower/higher (2009:
HK$2,914,335 higher/lower).

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group entered
into a net-settled Renminbi/United States dollar non-deliverable
structured forward contract with a monthly notional amount
of US$500,000 for a 24-month period beginning in January
2011. Under this contract, the Group has the opportunity to
receive a monthly Renminibi denominated payment in United
States dollar if the market exchange rate is below 6.90 for
a maximum period of 15 months. However, the Group is
obliged to buy Renminbi at a fixed exchange rate of 6.90 if
the market exchange rate is above 6.90. The contract will
be terminated if the market Renminbi/United States dollar
exchange rate is below 6.90 for more than 15 months during
the 24-month period.

At 31 December 2010, the above foreign exchange forward
contract did not qualify for hedge accounting under the
requirement of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement, and its fair value was determined by the
directors as immaterial based on the valuation provided by
the counterparty using valuation techniques. Accordingly, no
gain or loss on this contract was recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2010.

The Group currently does not have a formal foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions,
assets and liabilities. However, the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

76

(B)

(C)

(D)

PRICE RISK

The Group's available-forsale investments are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Therefore, the
Group is exposed to security price risk. The directors manage
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
difference risk profiles.

As at 31 December 2010, if the prices of the respective
securities had been 5% higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, the consolidated other comprehensive
income would increase/decrease by HK$2,394,459 (2009:
HK$2,077352) as a result of gains/losses on investments
classified as available-for-sale.

CREDIT RISK

The carrying amount of the pledged time deposits, bank
and cash balances and the trade and retention receivables
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to the Group’s financial assets.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history. In
addition, the directors review the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts.
In this regard, the directors consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a number of counterparties and
customers.

The credit risk on pledged time deposits, bank and cash
balances is limited because the counterparties are banks
with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

As at 31 December 2009 and 2010, the maturity of the
Group's financial liabilities is within one year.

Far East Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2010

5.

BERER#)

(B)

(C)

(D)

B E B

AEB A HHERENERERARLA
FERTE - Fitt - AEBARRESER
Rk EFFBEFRAREETRNKE
AaREE I RER -

R-ZT—FTE+-_A=+—H HEEH
BEMEREFTHE% - MATEEM
A EHEETE  REHMbEEKESHEH
Ro AR HHER GRS B8 Mg
Ok 42,394,45978 JL( — T N4 ¢
2,077,352 7C) °

EEAR
A BB HORE #E IR B -
ST RIR & BB R 3 UG R B AR
BemEEAERAEEE LS REEAR
FHRBEEAR -

AEBEEHITBRABRRAEESEEE
HMEFPETHE - I EFTEH
BAERNEZEB S B ATKRESHE - A
HEARMEEWR R ERHERRABERRE
it - EERBR/AEENEERRE KE
R o

AEERRBROHMEZEZZIHFRE
F - AtEERRITERBRESD

EEMESMER  RITRRSEBNEER
REBRER - BAR %Y F RERRT R
BRTRESEFRMIRT -

RBESRERE
AEEZBRAERERBAIRBERRS
BedR  UWRREESTAESMHEE
HEEHMRERANRBESF R -

RIBEZNEFR_T—ZTF+_A=1+—
B AEENSREER—FANEHE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

CpE e R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 =2 —TF+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(E)

(F)

(G)

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group's exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its
bank deposits. These deposits bear interests at variable rates
varied with the then prevailing market condition.

At 31 December 2010, if interest rates at that date had been
10 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year would
have been HK$153,368 (2009: HK$118,576) higher/lower,
arising mainly as a result of higher/lower interest income
on bank deposits.
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CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT THE END (F) BEHARESH|MTEEH
OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets: ERMEE :
Loans and receivables B EWER
(including cash and (BRESRESEEY)
cash equivalents) 624,725,163 630,970,850
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 47,889,176 41,547042
Financial liabilities: SHMEE
Financial liabilities BN ATER
at amortised cost TRIBE 85,815,194 80,124,344
FAIR VALUES (G) A¥E

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of
financial position approximate their respective fair values.

Available-for-sale investments represent investments in
various debt and equity instruments. The fair value of these
investments is measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

AEFBEFEAMBRARRARRNSHE
EReBRABNREEEESBNRFE
% e

AHEEREBRENZHEBEIBEATA
MIRE - ZERENQAFERBHEREE
FABERERTSREHBNHRETE

EREREEERAT 77
—E-grag



Notes to the Financial Statements

B TE R AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 H#E=Z—TF+—_A=+—HIFE

6. REVENUE/TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the facade contracting
business. The Group's revenue/turnover represents revenue from
construction contracts.

The Group has four reportable segments principally based on
the geographical locations of the projects and are determined
as follows:

- North America includes projects in the United States of
America and Canada.

- Greater China includes projects in the People's Republic of
China (the “PRC"), Hong Kong and Macau.

— Asia includes projects in Singapore and the United Arabs of
Emirates.

- Others include maintenance projects in all segments and
projects in countries not included in the above reportable
segments.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in note 3 to the financial statements.

Segment profits and losses do not include the following items:

- Other income (including interest income)
—  Administrative expenses

- Other operating expenses

- Finance costs

Segment assets do not include the following items:

- Property, plant and equipment

- Prepaid land lease payments

—  Available-for-sale investments

- Inventories

- Non-current assets held for sale

- Gross amount due from customers for contract work

- Prepayments, deposits and other receivables (including non-
current rental and utility deposits)

- Current tax assets

- Bank and cash balances and pledged time deposits

78 Far East Global Group Limited
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6. REVENUE/TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6. W& &£BERoBPER &)

INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about reportable segment profit or loss and assets:

BR2mOPaNBEMEENER -

North Greater

America China Asia Others Total
Ex RpE )| Htr g
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

For the year ended 31 December 2010

BECE-TES-A-T-ALEE

Revenue from external customers MERENE 385,286,309 346,168,504 54,951,948 80,257,343 866,664,104
Reportable segment profits SHHBEF 129371619 71663891 8142987 16,492,786 225,671,283
Unallocated amounts: ROBFE -
Other income HihA 21,005,519
Administrative expenses A (90,533,546 )
Other operating expenses Hir2ERY (18,656,750)
Profit before tax AR A 137,486,506
Other material items: HEZHE
Depreciation ik 3,054,300 3,647,692 424,069 267,637 7,393,698
Amount capitalised B (2,598,919)  (1,644,824)  (242,274)  (264,941)  (4,750,958)
455,381 2,002,868 181,795 2,696 2,642,740
Provision for impairment of trade and BEESEYG R
retention receivables written hack JENRE SRR (1,609,917)  (1,721,059) - - (3,330,976)
Provision for impairment of trade B AN R
and retention receivables RRRASRERR 1,634,844 905,000 - - 2,539,844
As at 31 December 2010 AZE-ZF+-A=1-H
Segment assets PHEE 67604,083 76,186,464 26,301,916 2,099,602 172,192,065
Property, plant and equipment % - BERSE 33,311,866
Available-forsale investments AELERE 47,889,176
Inventories F& 79,708
Non-current assets held for sale BIENEZHERBDEE 2,897,383
Gross amount due from customers SRR TRENERES
for contract work 86,183,900
Prepayments, deposits and B ke REMERK
other receivables 43,596,851
Current tax assets THHEEE 68,671
Bank and cash balances RTRRERK
and pledged time deposits BEATHER 446,902,617
Total assets BEBE 833,122,237
BREREMERAT | 59
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6. REVENUE/TURNOVER AND

80

INFORMATION (Continued)

SEGMENT 6. W& #Z£EkoPER 2)

North Greater
America China Asia Others Total
Sir3 AHE N Hify et
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Bt Bt Bn Bn B
For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ-EZNE+-A=1—-ALEE
Revenue from external customers IBRF Mg 450,958,352 263,228,099 125,794,380 20,210,868 860,191,699
Reportable segment profits 2R TR 128,503,288 36,285,269 9,816,952 17547729 192,153,238
Unallocated amounts: RARIE
Other income HiA 7,083,692
Administrative expenses s (97420,984)
Other operating expenses Hir2ERY (3,400,000
Profit before tax BAaA 98,415,946
QOther material items: HEZHER :
Depreciation ik 3,872,807 3,639,997 866,267 86,231 8,365,302
Amount capitalised BAEE (3,346,091)  (1,466,733) (601,379) (75,312)  (5,489,515)
526,716 2,073,264 264,888 10,919 2,875,787
Provision for impairment of trade and REE SR RER
retention receivables written back RESHERB - (556,800) - - (556,800)
Provision for impairment of trade BIREF R ERRE S
and retention receivables ERE 1609918 2,695,189 - - 4,305,107
As at 31 December 2009 R=ZEEAF+-A=1-H
Segment assets NEEE 93,869,208  77505,992 78,459,306 - 249,834,506
Property, plant and equipment % - BER 41,264,027
Prepaid land lease payments BN T HEETE 1,886,672
Available-forsale investments HEHERE 41,547042
Inventories 75 68,772
Non-current assets held for sale BIEREZERBDEE 2,803,922
Gross amount due from customers PR TRENEPES
for contract work 65,901,529
Prepayments, deposits and B - R REMEKH
other receivables 26,031,524
Current tax assets TEHEAE 102,180
Bank and cash balances and RORREERR
pledged time deposits BEEATEER 372,745,760
Total assets BELE 802,185,934
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6. REVENUE/TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6. W/ EEBERIEER (2)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Revenue from major customers (which individually contributed FTERP W =(ERBEAEE B KZEI0%K
10% or more of the Group'’s total revenue): LAE):
For the year ended 31 December 2010, revenue from two different HEZZT—ZTF+_A=+—HLEFE XK
customers of the Group's North America segment represents BASEILES TR AR P Ko BlME A
HK$214,366,667 and HK$89,564,031 of the Group's total revenue 5 B 42 W % #9214,366,6677%8 It 189,564,031
respectively and revenue from two different customers of the BT REAEBEBARFRESIHHMERF K
Group's Greater China segment represents HK$128,196,624 and = 9 Bk 7N & B 48 U 5 #9128,196,624 78 7T &
HK$93,092,603 of the Group's total revenue respectively. 93,092,603/8 7T °
For the year ended 31 December 2009, revenue from different HEZTTNFT-A=1+—HLFE " 575l
single customer of each individual or combined segments, the RKE—Esk—EAR EAFHES - BIREEKR
Group’s Greater China segment, the Group’s Greater China and RESE AEBAPERIMNHBRAE
Asia segment and the Group's North America segment represents EitEZSEHFNEFHKED BIEAEEE
HK$110,449,533, HK$87063,670 and HK$315,575,990 of the W %5 #9110,449,5337% 7T ~ 87,063,670/ T K&
Group's total revenue respectively. 315,575,990/ 7T °
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HkA
2010 2009
—ZT-ZF —EThEF
HK$ HK$
BT 7B
Bank interest income RITFBUA 1,888,348 1,005,354
Gain on disposals of scrap materials £ SER UL 776,783 784,090
Gain on disposal of HE R HEREN KR
available-for-sale investments 584,963 -
Gain on disposals of property, LEME  BE K&
plant and equipment B 9,496,078 =
Provision for impairment of trade REEE 5 ERG R
and retention receivables FEUURE @B R
written back 3,330,976 556,800
Net foreign exchange gains HNEE W 25 5 B8 4,466,367 4,321,496
Inventories written back BEFE 258,684 =
Others Hith 203,320 415,952
21,005,519 7,083,692
ERRBEMEMAT | gy

—E-BEEH



Notes to the Financial Statements

B TE R AR MY RE
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WEMAK
2010 2009
—E-2F ZETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest on bank overdrafts RITIE T MIRTTIE KA E
and bank borrowings - 12,111
Amount capitalised =N et - (12,111)
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FEHiBAxX
2010 2009
—E-2F ZETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ~ ZANEAFHIE — &8 M 1SH
Provision for the year FRBE 13,000,000 10,000,000
Under provision in prior years BAREFETREE - 6,272,583
13,000,000 16,272,583
Current tax — overseas ANHAR 18 — 4N
Provision for the year FRREAE 9,076,940 7484,143
22,076,940 23,756,726
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2009: BB R SRR AN F E (& 51 I 2R 5 om F A
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. 16.5%(—ZEFNE : 16.5% )T RHE o
Macau Corporate Tax has been provided on the taxable profit and SRR R TR AR F S FER BB M A% E12%
is calculated at the progressive rate from 9% to 12% (2009: 9% (ZZETNE : 9% FT12% )R EFRRAE -

to 12%) for the year.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

United States Corporate Income Tax has been provided at the
federal tax rate of 34% (2009: 34%), and where applicable, plus
applicable state tax rate of 8.84% (2009: 8.84%) based on the
estimated assessable profit for the year less allowable losses
brought forward.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been provided at a rate of 25%
(2009: 25%) based on the estimated assessable profit for the
year.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates, based on existing legislation, interpretation and practices
in respect thereof.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits

IECE 1))

FB (D ATIS T T IR A F (5 e mR A 0 )Rk
AR AT AR E1BIAB4 % (— BT N4 : 34% )N
BAMR RS 84% (—TT N4 : 8.84%) (W&
R R B BB R E o

h Bl R PTISBE T IR AN [ (A 5T AR B K1 A
25%(—ZTNEF  25% BB RGH -

H At 3 [ F) 8 BR A5 a8 M) A5 T $R AN SR B € AE PR
ERZNEMBE - RIFEHORITEN - &
BRIEHIEE -

P B X AT FIRA T BRI S H XY
BRANR -

Tax rate is as follows:

2010 2009
—E-2F —ETHhE
HK$ HKS$
BT 7SI
Profit before tax T A& A 137,486,506 98,415,946
Tax at domestic income tax rate R ATISH A %16.5%
of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) (ZZTNF ¢ 16.5%)sTHMTIIA 22,685,273 16,238,631
Tax effect of income that TEFBULA BT 75 5 2
is not taxable (1,732,808) (586,810)
Tax effect of expenses that PRI A RS 2
are not deductible 2,146,910 1,158,702
Tax effect of temporary AERG R ERENTH G2
differences not recognised (3,812,007) 153,448
Tax effect of utilisation of tax B ARERTRIBEER
losses not previously recognised M2 (825,488) (2,641,928)
Under provision in prior years BEFETEEME - 6,272,583
Effect of different tax rates M AR NREFEA A
of subsidiaries 3,615,060 3,162,100
Income tax expense FrisfiF sz 22,076,940 23,756,726
EREHEMERAT | gq
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZE=-ZT—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. F =R
The Group's profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) A& B B F AE A T 0Bk (T A) T 5 &8
the following: tEIE
2010 2009
—E-2F ZETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Auditor’s remuneration ZERT NS
— Provision for the year — F B 1,100,000 1,372,600
— Over-provision in prior years —BEFEBRERE (372,600) =
727,400 1,372,600
Depreciation e 7,393,698 8,365,302
Less: amounts capitalised B B EERE (4,750,958) (5,489,515)
2,642,740 2,875,787
Amortisation of prepaid HENTEN L AR & FE
land lease payments - 210,005
Gain on disposals of property, LEME - BE K&
plant and equipment FAER W (9,496,078) =
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE  BEX
plant and equipment R AR EsiE 449,714 264,483
Operating lease charges — land ERERY — TRk
and buildings EEY) 14,540,074 15,805,498
Less: amounts capitalised o B (12,662,962) (12,363,469)
1,877,112 3,442,029
Impairment on property, M - E K
plant and equipment RAERE = 3,400,000
Cost of contracting AP TIERA
works performed 632,027,092 666,445,998
Warranty provision IRE R 2,950,126 6,618,726
Provision for impairment on trade B ZEBGR R EWIRE €
and retention receivables BB 2,539,844 4,305,107
Provision for impairment on trade BEE ZEBGR R EWIRE &
and retention receivables BB
written back (3,330,976) (556,800)
Inventories (written back)/written off — (¥#[al)  HiiETF & (258,684) 140,416
Staff costs including EERAN(BRIEESHE):
directors’ emoluments:
Salaries, bonuses and allowances & LA NORR 87,091,385 91,255,751
Share-based payments LARR (D B ERR AT 3K 5,496,410 4,635,330
Retirement benefits RREFIEEI R
scheme contributions 4,593,513 3,888,291
Less: amount included in cost of B BIER AR T2
contracting works performed A H SR (42,470,435) (48,360,950)
54,710,873 51,418,422
Net foreign exchange gains HNE W 25 5 5 (4,466,367) (4,321,496)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE=-ZT—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 11. EE R {EEHMN

The emoluments of each director were as follows: EEEMEHMOT ¢
For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE-Z-EF5+-A=+—HLEFE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and Discretionary Share-based scheme
Name of director Fees allowances bonuses  payments contributions Total
DR#R  BAER
ESER we HEREE ]-ppg ERAR HE L am
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
Kwok Yeung Kwong G - 2,568,065 800,000 1,535,307 105,120 5,008,492
Huang Brad Huang Brad 60,700 - - 614,123 7921 682,750
Huang Guangyu BET 90,645 - - - - 90,645
Chiu Lok Man (i) BEX) - 691,347 320,000 71,203 9774 1,092,324
Hong Winn (i) Hong Winn(i) 90,645 - - - - 90,645
Ko Chuk Kin Herbert (i) BIEER() - 1,098,482 480,000 118,673 71,352 1,768,507
Yen Homer Shih Hung (i Bt 90,645 - - - = 90,645
Zhou Jinsong (i) FEISIHA() 90,645 - - - - 90,645

423,280 4,357894 1,600,000 2,339,306 194,173 8,914,653

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE_ZTTNF+-_A=+—HILFE

Retirement

Salaries benefit

and Discretionary ~ Share-based scheme
Name of director Fees  allowances bonuses payments — contributions Total

DRE  RINET
EEEA we  HeRE8 BfEia AR FE e ek
HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Kwok Yeung Kwong 2P - 2407000 600,000 2,305,208 120450 5,432,658
Huang Brad Huang Brad - 325,200 - - 42,471 367671
Kwong Wui Chun (ii) EVED (ii) = = - - _ _
Chen Jacob, James (i) Bk (i) - - - - - -
Huang Guangyu BET - - - - - -

- 2,732,200 600,000 2,305,208 162,921 5,800,329

ERBHREBARA .
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZE=-ZT—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

11.

86

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

Note:
(i) Appointed on 8 March 2010.

(i) Resigned on 31 March 2009.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year.

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included 2 (2009: 1) directors whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented above. The emoluments of the remaining
3 (2009: 4) individuals are set out below:

1.

EEREEFM 2

BiEE

() RZZ—ZTF=ANBEZEE-

(i) RZBTZAF=A=1+—HEE-

BB R NE SR BN E A E A
REXN > AEB LU REFMALTEERL(Z
BTNF  —(DEF - FENFHEN LD

MR - {T =0 (=TT NAF - Mfz) AL
EEFENE I T

2010 2009

—E-ZF —ETAF

HK$ HK$

I BT

Basic salaries and allowances EARF & MOERE 4,195,948 6,191,842

Discretionary bonuses BEIEAL 1,050,000 1,140,000

Share-based payments LARR 15 BERER R 332,284 979,213
Retirement benefit RARRFIE B 2R

scheme contributions 156,600 227730

5,734,832 8,538,785

The emoluments fell within the following band:

e R ToI8E -

Number of individuals

AR
2010 2009
—E-%F  —FINF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £%1,000,000/% 7T = =
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T 21,500,000/ 7T 1 =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 722,000,000 7T 1 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T %£2,500,000/8 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7T %£3,000,000/8 7T 1
3 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 =2 —TF+-_A=+—HIFE

12.

13.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
included a profit of approximately HK$24,399,216 (2009: loss
of HK$4,711,144) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

12. ZRATHER ABEFRER

KARER ARG AFEERFE P EERFL
24,399,216/ ;L( — T L& « E184,711,144
YSI0) ERANA R B A 3RER P bR o

DIVIDENDS 13. BE
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
HKS HKS
B BT
Interim dividend — HK$0.015 AR HARR B — TR iBA%0.01578 7T
(2009: Nil) per ordinary share (ZZZNF - §) 16,741,620 -
Special dividend declared on R_ZE—ZEF=F+=H
12 March 2010 approved and SR EHERSS T
paid to the then shareholders RATE EMRIRE 2
before the listing of the BRIk B — B E#AX198.6/5 T
Company — HK$198.6 “ETNF &)
(2009: Nil) per ordinary share 198,600,000 -
Proposed final dividend — HK$0.015  E&ZAHAMKE — FRZ@A%0.015/8 T
(2009: HK$24) per ordinary share (ZZEZNF : 2487T) 16,741,620 24,000,000
232,083,240 24,000,000

The special dividend declared on 12 March 2010 of
HK$198,600,000, representing HK$198.60 per ordinary share,
and the proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2009 of HK$24,000,000, representing HK$24 per ordinary share,
were paid to the then shareholders before the listing of the
Company. The amounts of dividend per share are calculated based
on 1,000,000 ordinary shares in issue at 31 December 2009.

The amounts of interim dividend and proposed final dividend
per share for the year ended 31 December 2010 are calculated
based on the enlarged number of shares after the listing of the
Company.

RZEBE-—ZE=A+_HERNERKE
198,600,0007% 7T ( B & A% 3 8 1% 198.60/%8 7T )
FEHE-EZEAF+-_A=t—HILEENE
% 7 B A% 224,000,000 7T (BN & AR 4 k24
BIL)RA NG LA EIRS FERZKRE -
B ESBEN _ETENF+_A=+—8~2Z
1,000,00008 B 1T EMARGTE o

BE_ZZF+_A=+t—HIFEZHH
BERZEZRRAYRESEREBEARR LMK
RIEERMERMD BB FTE

EREREEERAT -
—E-grag
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 H#E=Z—TF+—_A=+—HIFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based
on the following:

14. BRER

BREAREERNRBEATERFTE

2010 2009
—E-TF —ZETNF
HK$ HK$
BT 7SI
Earnings BF|
Profit attributable to owners of RUGTEERERK
the Company, used in the BSERN 2 A RNEHB A
basic and diluted earnings JE =
per share calculation 110,113,165 74,287,799
Number of shares RGOEE
Weighted average number of RUGTEERERBR 2
ordinary shares used in basic TR R &
earnings per share calculation 1,054,070,137 850,000,000
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary — FESIIEE 4 2 B
shares arising from share options wErmkye 7,880,962 =
Weighted average number of ordinary FUAGFESRESER T2
shares used in diluted earnings TR R &
per share calculation 1,061,951,099 850,000,000
The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during REBEE_ZTTZNEFR-_Z-ZTFF+_A=+

the year ended 31 December 2009 and 2010 of 850,000,000
and 1,054,070,137 respectively is calculated on the assumption
that 850,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each comprising 1,000,000
shares issued on 30 November 2009 and 849,000,000 shares
issued pursuant to the capitalisation issue on 10 March 2010
had been in issue throughout year ended 31 December 2009
and 2010.

In addition, the calculation of the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31 December
2010 includes the 271,750,000 ordinary shares issued upon
completion of global offering of the Company during the year and
the 5,642,000 ordinary shares repurchased during the year.
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—BULEFEEARADHETE @Hﬂu%%ﬁ%& J
850,000,0000% 521,054,070,1378% » JH{& &
HE_ZZNEFER_Z—ZTF+=-A=1+— EI
IFFE A E 17850,000,0000% & ML EIE0.01 78
TCE %D (F11,000,00008 A —EZ A E+— A
=TRBTZROEBER-_Z—ZF=A+
H 8 & ANk 347 B 317 #9849,000,0008% A% 12
4R )ETE o

N BEZZE—TF+_A=+— Elmif
maﬁéﬁE@beu%ﬂ?fﬁ%{ZJﬁa%ﬁ
RERNTHKEIREE LT 2271,75o,oooﬂx
TR MR FAEER 2 5,642,0000% @A ©



Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE=-ZT—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 1% - BERZE

Group
s |
Furniture,
Landand  Leasehold  Plantand fixtures and Motor  Tools and Construction
buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles mould in progress Total
t# fig B Br IEA
REEYN  NEEE  BERER  LERRE & BE  KBIR 4%
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
AT BT AT BT o BT B BT
Cost HA
At 1 January 2009 RZZZNE-F-H 36,023,734 8040364 25207987 22183997 6635248 1483025 4,770,134 104,344,489
Currency realignment EiA% - - - 55,758 - - - 55,758
Transferred to non-current BERENEY
assets held for sale ERBAE (6,000,000) - - - - - - (6,000,000
Additions BE 138,786 1,867292 41072 1,076,812 - 1377 - 3495339
Disposalsfwrite-off HE /i (195,000] ©711) (856494  (268277)  (864,292) - - 19837H
At 31 December 2009 and R-ZENET-A=1+-BR
1 January 2010 “Z-ZE-f-f 29967520 9897945 24762565 23,048,290 5770956 1484402 4770134  99,701812
Currency realignment EiA% - - - 257848 - - - 257848
Transferred to non-current BERENEY
assets held for sale ERBAE (2,261,059) - - - - - - (2,261,069)
Additions BE - 427702 27663 923793 74,048 - - 1,693,206
Disposalsfwrite-off HE /i (604,075 - (5088280) [3,851,165) (1497414 - - (10940,934)
At 31 December 2010 RIE-FET-A=+-B 27202386 10,325,647 19941948 20378766 4347500 1484402 4770134 88450873
Accumulated depreciation ZiERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2009 R-ZENE-F-H 9472812 7015857 15963546 8575271 3,752,750 1213947 4770134 50,764,317
Currency realignment E A - - - 7200 - - - 7200
Transferred to non-current Eop{EHEY
assets held for sale ERBEAE (3,196,078 - - - - - - [3,196,078)
Charge for the year TERER 420416 580678 3203470 3188763 825,347 146,628 - 8365302
Impairment loss HEEE 3,400,000 - - - - - - 3,400,000
Disposalsfwrite-off e/ - (6,358)  (429,589) (67767)  (399,242) - - (902,956)
At 31 December 2009 and R-EENET-A=1-AEk
1 January 2010 “2-%5-F-8 10097150 7590177  18,737427  11,703467 4178855 1,360,575 4770134 58437785
Currency realignment B A% - - - 94,529 - = = 94,529
Transferred to non-current BER{ENEY
assets held for sale ERBEE (1,530,355 - - - - - - [1530.355)
Charge for the year TEFER 234,434 950,318 2436740 3,123,815 527339 121,052 - 739369
Disposalsfwrite-off e /M - - (4702505 (3561627) (992,518 - - (9,256,650)
At 31 Decernber 2010 REF-TET2A=1-H 8801229 8540495 16471662 11360184 371367 1481627 4770134 65139007
Carrying amount HEE
At 31 December 2010 RCE-FET-A=+-B 18401157 1785152 3470286 9018582 633914 2,775 - 33,311,866
At 31 December 2009 REEZAET-A=T-B 19870370 2307768 6025138 11344823 1,592,101 123,827 - 41,264,007
EREREEMERD A 89
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 H#E=Z—ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its
freehold land in the United States of America and construction in
progress erected on this freehold land in the years 2009 and 2010,
by reference to market evidence of recent transactions for similar
properties by Horizon Village Appraisal, an independent firm of
chartered surveyors. No impairment loss (2009: HK$3,400,000)
has been recognised for the year ended 31 December 2010, as

15. Y% Jﬂﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ(@)

RZZZNFR-Z—ZFH ~EERER
E’J%R%%iﬁ&%%ﬁ%%ii@imﬁﬁl
BRI E S RET S o WA DB BB
B ErBI2Ri1THorizon Village Appraisalf& &%
IMHREMER SIS EREMSE - RE
E_EZ—ZF+_A=t+—HUEFETERR
REEE(ZTZTNEF : 3,400,000%7T) © TIEA

the carrying amount approximates the recoverable amount. The BREEEKESEES - EEEEMN KD
recoverable amount of the relevant assets has been determined SHRIBEBEEQAFTERHEENAETE -
on the basis of their fair value less costs to sell.
An analysis of the cost of the Group's land and buildings is as REE Tt RIEEY) 2 A DT ¢
follows:
2010 2009
—E-2F ZETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Located in: (A
Mainland China, held under EPIKIE'E VAR BARE AR5 B
medium term leases 7,306,050 9,567,109
United States of America, freehold  EE » sk A E#E 19,896,336 20,400,411
27,202,386 29,967,520
16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FE{+ LA ERIE
Group
REE
2010 2009
—E-2F ZETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At beginning of year F7) 2,166,679 2,376,684
Transfer to non-current HERFEHEZ
assets held for sale IEMENE E (2,166,679) =
Amortisation of prepaid BiTE N LA E KA
land lease payments - (210,005)
At end of year FR - 2,166,679
Current portion included in TR - Ze REM
prepayments, deposits FEW R Y
and other receivables ANERER S - (280,007)
Non-current portion FEAREREB - 1,886,672
The Group's prepaid land lease payments represent payments AEEEM LA ERIBEBEMRFREK
for land use rights located in the Mainland China under medium B LA AR B AR 40 75 B Y £ b {55 B R AT 2 S A9 3K
term leases. I o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 =2 —TF+-_A=+—HIFE

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 17. AMtHERE

Group
REE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTTNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Unlisted investments, at fair value: 3 EH#&E @ LA F(E :
Club debenture BEES 380,000 380,000
Investment funds and WEES MFERE
certificates of deposits 47,509,176 41,167,042
47,889,176 41,547042
Analysed as: bakiv=
Current assets MENEE = 14,761,000
Non-current assets FEMENE 47,889,176 26,786,042
47,889,176 41,547042

For the year ended 31 December 2010, fair value gain on the
Group’s available-for-sale investments recognised in other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$474,396 (2009:
HK$450,138).

The investment funds and certificate of deposits were designated
as available-for-sale investments on initial recognition. These
investments are capital guaranteed.

The fair value of unlisted available-for-sale investments is
determined with reference to the quoted market price or
secondary market redemption price as provided by the issuer
of the underlying investments.

As at 31 December 2010, the carrying value of the Group's
investment funds and certificates of deposits pledged as
security for the Group's general banking facilities amounted to
HK$24,109,176 (2009: HK$26,406,042).

HE-_Z-—ZFE+-_A=1+—HILEE K&
EREMmEEREEROAIHEHEREQTE
g 25 A474,3967% 70( — T J1L4F © 450,138/
JL) °

REES RERBNRERRAHBERE -
HEREREALER -

FELETMAIHEEEREZ R FETNESRAEHT
BEXAERERTAMEHRNE _—HZEDE

IREETE °

R-ZZE—ZFF+-_A=+—HB "&EBHE
BEHUERE —MBTERNREESRER
= BR M E 524,109,176 t( — T T N 4 ¢
26,406,042787T) ©

EREREEERAT -
—E-grag
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE =T —ZEF+-_A=+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. R B A R

Company
RATHE
2010 2009
—g-2%  —TThf
HK$ HK$
BT VT
Unlisted investments, at cost FELEMIRE - A 48,657,939 43,652,000

MBARNR-—FT—FTF+_A=1+—HBNFE

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2010 are as

follows: R
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of ownership
registration and Issued and interest/voting Principal
Name operation paid up capital power/profit sharing  activities
ML/ ERTR kAR REE/
£ BRREELY HRRE BARANEIL TEER
Direct Indirect
Ef R
Far East Aluminium (BVI) Limited  British Virgin Islands 6,000 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
EERNES 6,000 BRE(E 1 ETH LRk RERR
Far East Aluminium Works Hong Kong 900,000 ordinary shares of - 100% Design, manufacture and
Company Limited &b HK$100 each installation of curtain walls,
BREZTRARAR 900,000k BREEI00A T EBKR aluminium windows and
other related products
Rit - HERRERE  BER
At iAEER
Far East Facade (UK) Limited United Kingdom 1 ordinary share of GBP1 - 100% Inactive
3G 1REE 1 EEMN L RR TER
Far East Facade (UAE) Limited British Virgin Islands 10,000 ordinary shares of US$1 each - 100% [nvestment holding
AERARE 10,000 FRE E1E LA E B RERR
World Eastern Cladding United Arab of 100 ordinary shares of - 100% Design, manufacture and
Works (LLC) Emirates AED3,000 each installation of curtain walls,
FAfEg AR RE 100k B R E{E3, 000/ B} i R H) LB IR aluminium windows and
other related products
#at HERZERRE  BER
AtAEER
Far East Facade, Incorporated United States of 100,000 ordinary shares of - 100% Design, manufacture and
America US$0.01 each installation of curtain walls,
*H 100,000 B AEBE0.01E LA L Bk aluminium windows and
other related products
#at - HERZERMR  BER
AfbRBER
Far East Facade (HK) Limited British Virgin Islands 10,000 ordinary shares of US$1 each - 100% Investment holding
EERNES 10,000 BREE1ETHERR RERR
Facade Design and Drafting Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each = 100% Inactive
Services Limited &b 100RERERI BTN EER TEE

Far East Global Group Limited
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

18. RKIB A TR &)

Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of ownership
registration and Issued and interest/voting Principal
Name operation paid up capital power/profit sharing  activities
ML/ BRTR RER/RER/
£ BRREELY HERE BARANEIL TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE ik
Heng Fai International Limited British Virgin Islands 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100% Manufacture of curtain walls,
RBENES HK$0.1 each aluminium windows and
10,0008 AR EEO. 1 AT LB other related products
HESE  RERENERER
Netfortune Limited Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each - 100% Investment holding
NEERAT Y 500,000%EREE1ETHEER REER
Willbert Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary shares of US$1 - 100% Property holding
EERAHE 1REE1ETH L R BENR
Far East Aluminium Works Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each - 100% Property holding
(Guangzhou) Company Limited &/ REREEETHERER S ES
BREETR (BM) ARAA
FEA Technology Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each = 100% Inactive
BRISHRARAR B 2RERAEBTHLBR TERE
FEA Engineering Limited British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares of US$1 each = 100% Investment holding
EERAEHE 100X SR EE1ETH L Bk REZR
FEA Investments Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 = 100% Investment holding
EERAEHE 1REBIETHLER REZR
Strong Power International Limited ~ Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each = 100% Investment holding
BEERERAA B 2RGREBIETHLBR REZR
Better View Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each = 100% Property holding
MEREARARA A 2RGREBIETHLBR BN
Seniford Engineering Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each = 100% Inactive
FHEIRERAR B 2RERAEBTHLBR TERE
FEA Corporate Services Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each - 100% Provision of company
i 2RERAEBTHLBR secretarial services to
Group companies
RAEER B ARIREAFNE
s
Far East Aluminium Works Singapore 700,000 ordinary shares of SGD1 each - 100% Design, manufacture and
(Singapore) Pte. Limited s 70,0008 = B 137 st oy L3k installation of curtain walls,
aluminum windows and
other related products
Rt BERLEKRE  BER
At AEER
ERBEREFERA A

—E-BEEH
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18. R B AR (&)

Place of

incorporation/ Percentage of ownership

registration and Issued and interest/voting Principal
Name operation paid up capital power/profit sharing  activities
ML/ BRTR RER/RER/
7 BRREELY HERE BARANEIL TEER
Direct Indirect
E# B
Netfortune (Shanghai) The People's Registered capital of - 75% Design, manufacture and
Aluminium Works Company Republic of China RMB10,000,000 installation of curtain walls,
Limited (a sino-foreign equity I ARLAE FHEAAR10,000,0007 aluminium windows and
joint venture enterprise) other related products
LEEEETRERAR #at HERZERR  BER
(—RpeERERE) At iREER
Netfortune Engineering Macau 25,000 ordinary shares of - 100% Design, manufacture and
(FEA) Macau Limited AP MOP1 each installation of curtain walls,
HETR (&iR) RMERAR 25,000 SR EENEMI TR aluminum windows and
other related products
&g@%ég?%%ﬂ% BRER
At RRER
Far East Aluminium Works United States of 200,000,000 - 100% Design, manufacture and
(U.S.) Corporation America ordinary shares of installation of curtain walls,
*H US$0.001 each aluminium windows and
200,000,000 B R EE0.001 E LR LBl other related products
Wit HERZRERE  BER
AtiAEER
Far East Facade Investments British Virgin Islands 10,000 ordinary shares of US$1 each = 100% [nvestment holding
Limited AERAEE 10,000 FHRE E1 £ LA E B RERR
Far East Aluminium Works Canada 100 ordinary shares - 100% Design, manufacture and
Canada Corporation mex of CAD1 each installation of curtain walls,
100REREENE1 T LRI aluminium windows and
other related products
#at HERZERR  BER
At iREER
Heng Fai International Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 - 100% Inactive
&k 1REE BT L BR TER
Far East Aluminium Works Chile Registered share capital of PES010,000,000 - 100% Design, manufacture and
Chile Limitada B A A10,000,0008F installation of curtain walls,
aluminium windows and
other related products
&g@%ég?%%ﬂ% BRER
At RRER
Kam Sau Corporation Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 - 100% Inactive
RERZERAT B 1REEETH L RR TER
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19.

20.

INVENTORIES 19. BE

Group
E3

2010 2009

—2-%F “TENF

HK$ HKS

BT BT

Consumables SHRAE 79,708 68,772
NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 20. BIEHENERBEE

On 8 July 2009, the Group entered into a conditional agreement
with an independent third party to dispose of a property located
in the PRC for the consideration of HK$6,768,000. The property
was not available for immediate sale in its present condition
during the year ended 31 December 2009 and accordingly, no
reclassification of the property as held for sale was made. The
property was available for immediate sale upon obtaining the
revised land use right certificates during the year ended 31
December 2010. Accordingly, the carrying amount of the property,
comprising prepaid land lease payments of HK$2,166,679 and
land and buildings of HK$730,704 have been classified as non-
current assets held for sale in the consolidated statement of
financial position during the year ended 31 December 2010.

Pursuant to a supplementary agreement entered into on 30 May
2010, the deadline for completing the transaction was extended
to 31 December 2011.

The proceeds of the disposal exceeded the carrying amount
of the property and accordingly, no impairment loss has been
recognised on the classification of the property as held for
sale.

RZBEZNFLANR  AEEE-—FZBIFH
= HEIM— B G - LAR(E6,768,000/8
THEERFENYE - ZVWERBE-ZT
NE+ZA=+T—HIEFERNEREREFRR

XA LS MW EREMESTHE RS
%ﬁ% HE-_ZT—ZTF+-_A=+—HItF
& ZYEES SR £ b (55 AR 18 mT 4
e Bt #E-—ZT—FTF+_A=+
—HIEFE  ZWENEEE(BEN RS
FXIA2,166,6797% 7T M L 3 I E 55 H)730,7047%8
TR )RR BRI RS EAFIELER
3'5//“4@},%%

RER-F-2FRA=TATIHBITH
% RHERBRBEE-T——F+-A=t
_Ho

HRAHEMSHRRBLZMENREE - Fit
W ERZDEF R E Z D BERBERE -

ERBHREBARA -
—F-FEEH



Notes to the Financial Statements

BA TSR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE =T —ZEF+-_A=+—HILFE

21. GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS 21. AR IRREW ENEFELE

FOR CONTRACT WORK

Group

AEE
2010 2009
—%-%F  —FINF
HK$ HK$
AT BT

Contract costs incurred plus
recognised profits less
foreseeable losses to date

Less: Progress billings

ESBEEARMTREKAINE R
i )Rk BT 7B R g 18
4,577,493,175 4,314,703,368
T R UG (4,624,193,002) (4,510,558,789)

(46,699,827) (195,855,421)

Gross amount due from
customers for contract work

Gross amount due to
customers for contract work

AN TREERE FERE
PAEAN TN T A%

86,183,900 65,901,529

(132,883,727) (261,756,950)

(46,699,827) (195,855,421)

22. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES 22. BESEWFRERRES
Group
REE
2010 2009
—E-=EF —ETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade receivables E 5 WK 81,201,298 121,619,238
Retention receivables ERRES 108,483,730 146,499,363
189,685,028 268,118,601
Impairment losses REEE (17,492,963) (18,284,095)

172,192,065 249,834,506

The Group's trade receivables mainly represent progress billings AEENESRBAREEZERZEMINEERBET
receivables from facade building contracting works. The Group R EYCEE WK - NEBRMHEE BN E
adopts credit policies which are consistent with the trade practices AEBEGAMERRFHNEETELBREAN
prevalent in the building industry in countries which the Group BSEH—H - AEERD B IEEEERE
has operations. The Group recognises its trade receivables when MRBRERAEE SRR - RIEZSER -
the value of the subcontract works is certified by the architect. BRABHITRRELHNIRERENRD B4
Pursuant to the trade practices, the main contractor from time to EHEESBITRENEZEEE -

time makes applications for payment certificates which include the
certified value of the nominated subcontract works.

96 Far East Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2010



Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 H#E=Z—TF+-_A=+—HIFE

22. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Retention receivables represents certified contract payments in
respect of works performed, for which payments are withheld
by customers for retention purposes, and the amount retained is
withheld on each payment up to a maximum amount calculated on
a prescribed percentage of the contract sum. No ageing analysis of
retention receivables is presented as the retentions are released
to the Group pursuant to the provisions of the relevant contracts
after the completion of the projects in question.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

22. ESEWREREVRRES ®)

URESHEEPECABZIRNREENR
B ZFHIA - BFE N IRN R IB LR E K
B BReazBERBEARSEMNEEA DL
- REGHARGK  REXBEREHER
TREABHETARE  HAR2IIEUKRE
BHFREC DT ©

BEXZAHRNGEEBERIELNE S ERR
BRERDATIAT

Group

AL
2010 2009
—g-2F  _TTNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Trade receivables: H S EBGK

0 to 30 days EFFE30H 58,462,780 55,881,754
31 to 60 days 31260H 4,888,827 46,806,615
61 to 90 days 61%290H 4,398,174 2,143,014
More than 90 days 908 A E 8,543,785 9,324,146
76,293,566 114,155,529
Retention receivables EWIRE & 95,888,499 135,678,977

172,192,065 249,834,506

As at 31 December 2010, a provision of impairment was made
for estimated irrecoverable trade and retention receivables of
approximately HK$17492,963 (2009: HK$18,284,095).

R-E—ZF+-_A=+—H BAFEFTIHR
[ & 5 FE Uk & e IR B8 ©17,492,9637 T( =
TT NG ¢ 18,284,095/ 7T ) {E LR BB -

=
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—E-grag
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22. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of the trade and retention
receivables are as follows:

22 ESEWRRERRES &)

B 5 B FE UL R B < AR (B 1 S SRR 10
T e

Group

REE
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
At beginning of year FH] 18,284,095 14,535,788
Impairment losses reversed B EREEE (3,330,976) (556,800)
Provision for impairment BB B 2,539,844 4,305,107
At end of year S 17,492,963 18,284,095

The individually impaired trade and retention receivables relate to
contracts under disputes with customers and are expected not
to be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over these balances.

As of 31 December 2010, trade receivables of HK$17830,786
(2009: HK$58,273,775) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is
no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade
receivables is as follows:

ERIERMEE 5 EYHR R ERRE S EHRY
MNEFPARBR  LEHATRE - AEE
I BBz AR H EMERRRELEME
BT -

R-TE—ZTFE+-_A=+—0 2AHERH
BEWE 5 EK R A17830,786/8 T( —Z T ZT A,
& : 58,273,77587T) © % F AR JHELE T i A
WEERCENBEYEFEH - 2SE5ENK
RHBRE DTN ¢

Group
REE
2010 2009
—ZT—TF —ETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Up to 3 month ZE=={AA 9,287,001 48,949,629
3 to 6 months =E=~EA 8,543,785 9,324,146
17,830,786 58,273,775

The amount of retentions expected to be recovered after more
than twelve months is HK$71,128,305 (2009: HK$118,602,588).
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22. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES 22. BESRWRRERRE S @)
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and retention receivables REBEE SRV R EWIRE € REEL T3
are denominated in the following currencies: HEEHE -
Group
rEH
2010 2009
—g-8F  -TTAF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Hong Kong dollar BIT 35,484,018 54,879,855
United States dollar ETT 45,330,481 79,609,163
Renminbi AR 33,865,822 15,117,682
Macau Pataca EPITT 8,936,226 7508,455
United Arab Emirates Dirham Pl Bk B e 16,721,250 28,665,312
Canadian dollar pililes 22,273,602 14,260,045
Singapore dollar T 9,580,666 49,793,994

172,192,065 249,834,506

23. DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES 23. FEWFETH B D R FUIE
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free e TER B A RKIBEEA - R RE
and have no fixed terms of repayment. BEEEE o
BREREEERAT | gg

—E-BEEH
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24. PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS AND BANK AND
CASH BALANCES

24. EEFEHMERRBITRREER

100

Group
3 1)
2010 2009
—2-8F  “TTNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Pledged time deposits B E B R 82,683,621 57,061,570
Bank and cash balances IRITRIRE L8R 364,218,996 315,684,190
446,902,617 372,745,760

The Group's pledged time deposits represented deposits pledged
to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group as set
out in note 27 to the financial statements.

The carrying amounts of the Group's pledged time deposits
and bank and cash balances are denominated in the following
currencies:

ARER B B E BE IR B WK M 27 At
ZRETASENRITEERHERMERT

RITEVIFR ©

AEEEERERERRBRTRESESRET
BENATIERE -

Group

AEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$ HK$
BT PEIT
Hong Kong dollar BT 129,889,760 48,964,566
United States dollar ETT 120,886,813 229,104,084
Renminbi AR 154,509,370 2,797,294
Macau Pataca SEPITT 4,737,281 1,507,288
United Arab Emirates Dirham Pl Bt 25 2 R A 3,586,117 38,201,045
Canadian dollar nes 21,231,720 4,696,437
Chile Peso EREES 142,141 41,446
Euro BT 37616 10,886
Singapore dollar gt 11,881,799 47422,714
446,902,617 372,745,760

As at 31 December 2010, the bank and cash balances of the Group RZZE—ZTF+-A=+—H AEEUAR

denominated in Renminbi amounted to HK$154,509,370 (2009:
HK$2,797.294). Conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies
is subject to the Peoples of Republic China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

Far East Global Group Limited
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25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The aging analysis of trade and bills payables, based of receipt of

25.

BEZENRREMNRE

RBKREELNE SRR EENRIERE D

goods, is as follows: T -

Group

rEE
2010 2009
—B-=F —ETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
0 to 30 days ZE30H 33,369,626 35,588,862
31 to 60 days 31260H 4,657,442 3,808,967
More than 60 days 60H LA = 14,100,559 9,864,178
52,127,627 49,262,007

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and bills payables are

AEEEZERNREENZEBEERTEATIIE

denominated in the following currencies: WA -

Group

REE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Hong Kong dollar BT 15,028,936 8,136,442
United States dollar X7 10,808,849 19,110,332
Renminbi ARHE 22,124,330 15,666,206
Singapore dollar N T 252,730 3,191,224
Chile Peso SRk ES 474,997 395,670
United Arab Emirates Dirham BBk 26 e Ay 190,042 1,064,032
Canadian dollar hnis 3,247,743 1,698,101
52,127,627 49,262,007

EREREEERAA 101
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26. WARRANTY PROVISION 26. RERE

Group

TEE
2010 2009
—E-2F ZETNF
HK$ HK$
BT PEIT
At beginning of year F1] 12,630,124 10,559,444
Additional provisions M 2,950,126 6,618,726
Provisions used B A (390,264) (4,548,046)
At end of year FR 15,189,986 12,630,124

27.

102

The Group provides warranties to its customers on facade
contracting works in accordance with terms and conditions as
stipulated in contracts, under which defective works are rectified
or replaced.

The amount of the warranty provision is estimated based on
the past experience of the level of defective works and the
estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised
where appropriate.

BANKING FACILITIES

At 31 December 2010, the Group had available and unutilised banking
facilities amounted to HK$303,281,379 (2009: HK$190,285,790).

These facilities are secured by:
(a) Pledges of the Group's available-for-sale investments of

HK$24,109,176 (2009: HK$26,406,042) (note 17).

(b) Pledges of the Group's time deposits of HK$82,683,621
(2009: HK$57.061,570) (note 24); and

(c) Corporate guarantees with an aggregate amount of
HK$469,600,000 executed by the Company (2009:
HK$287,000,000).

Far East Global Group Limited
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27.
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TRRAEFPRERMHFAE Bt ARETERS
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D ZRREfEF o ZfbEHEERE T IR KR
EEEEER] o

RITEE

R-B—ZTF+-_A=+—0  KEEr
AR ABAHIRTT{EE <% A303,281,3798 7T
—ZTTALF : 190,285,79078 7T ) °

RITEERATRAERR

(a) AR B A4 S8 524,109,176/ 7T
(ZZEZ R4 : 26,406,042 7T ) H AR (M
$¥17) °
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T T A, : 57061,5705% 7t ) &, (5%
24): &

() AZARARE S T A469,600,000/%8 7T
(ZZZT A4 : 287000,000/ 7T ) A A
R ©



Notes to the Financial Statements

Lyp RS E S Ik

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE =T —ZEF+-_A=+—HILFE

28.

29.

DEFERRED TAX

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in
subsidiaries are insignificant.

No provision for deferred taxation has been made in the financial
statements as the tax effect of temporary difference is immaterial

to the Group.

28. EFERE

R o

ARMBARNEaMELANEREZHE

HREREZENHAYEHARERY TE
R B BREABEREEH IR EHL B -

SHARE CAPITAL 29. [}
Authorised Issued and fully paid
EE BETREAR
Nominal value ~ Number of Number of
per share shares Amount shares Amount
SREE RGBHE k2 RAEE &8
Note HK$ HK$
Wiz BT BT
At 1 January 2009 RZZENE-A—A US$1.00 1.00%T 20,000,000 156,000,000 18,880,000  147264,000
Increase in authorised share capital EERAEM {a)  HK$0.010.01%7 39,000,000 390,000 - -
Issue of shares R0 () HK$0.01 0.01&7T - - 1,000,000 10,000
Repurchase of shares EERR {a)  US$1.00 1.00%7T - - (18,880,000) (147264,000)
Cancellation of shares in WNEERAT TR
authorised share capital (a)  US$1.00 1.0037T  (20,000,000) (156,000,000) - -
At 31 December 2009 and RZBRNFTZA=T-RER
1 January 2010 I HK$0.01 0.01%7 39,000,000 390,000 1,000,000 10,000
Increase in authorised share capital EERAEM (o) HK$0.01 0.017%7T 9,961,000,000 99,610,000 - -
Capitalisation issue EXLET (b)  HK$0.01 0.0175 7T - - 849,000,000 8,490,000
Issue of shares BTk (o) HKS$0.01 0.01T - - 271,750,000  2,717500
Repurchase of shares BERR () HK$0.01 0.01757T - - (5,642,000) 56,420)
At 31 December 2010 RZF-2Ft-A=1—H HK$0.01 0.017%7T 10,000,000,000 100,000,000 1,116,108,000 11,161,080
BRRBREBERD T 103
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29.

104

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@) On 30 November 2009, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased by HK$390,000 by the creation of 39,000,000 shares
of HK$0.01 each of which 1,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
were issued at par for cash. Immediately thereafter, the Company
repurchased all of the 18,880,000 ordinary shares of US$0.01
each at a price of HK$10,000,000 and then cancelled 20,000,000
ordinary shares of US$1 each in the authorised share capital of the
Company.

(b)  On 10 March 2010, the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from HK$390,000 to HK$100,000,000 by the creation of
9,961,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each; and conditional on the share
premium account of the Company being credited pursuant to the
global offering of the shares of the Company, the directors of the
Company were authorised to capitalise the sum of HK$8,490,000,
standing to the credit of the share premium account of the Company
by issuing 849,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each, credited as fully paid
at par.

(c)  On 30 March 2010, the Company issued 271,750,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$1.18 each upon completion of the
global offering of the shares of the Company.

(d)  During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company repurchased
and cancelled 5,642,000 shares of its own shares through purchases
on the Stock Exchange for total consideration of HK$3,646,140.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise
the return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment of
dividends or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is bank
borrowings divided by the equity attributable to owners of the
Company. The Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a
reasonable level. At 31 December 2009 and 2010, the Group does
not have outstanding bank borrowing.

At 31 December 2009 and 2010, the Group is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements.

Far East Global Group Limited
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b) RZZE—ZTF=A+H AQABBEYE
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30. RESERVES 30. f#fE
(A) GROUP (A) =&EE
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements AEB L FESEREHERGEEZEK
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of mRREEEREPHRFAZET

comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

(B) COMPANY (B) Z&AFH]

The amounts of the Company’s reserves and the movements KRR RECEREH2HMT -
therein are presented below.

Share Share-based Proposed
premium payment Accumulated final
account reserve losses dividend Total
MR B

RVEER EREHHE ZitFE EERERE Lk

Note HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$

iz BT BT BT BT BT

At 1 January 2009 RZEENF-A-AH 96,605,396 - (56,255,965) 34,000,000 74,349,931

Loss for the year ENER - - (471,144) - [471,144)

Repurchase of shares BERR 29 137264,000 - - - 137264,000

Share-based payments SARRAD A RT3 31 - 4635330 - - 4635330

Dividend paid BERRE = = - (34,000,000) (34,000,000)

Proposed final dividend B ABRE 13 (24,000,000) - - 24,000,000 -
At 31 December 2009 and RZEENETZRA=T-H

1 January 2010 Lk=2-2F-A-H 209,869,896 4,635,330  (60,967109) 24,000,000  177538,117

Profit for the year EREF - - 24399216 - 24399216

Capitalisation issue EXIET (8,490,000) - - - (8,490,000)

Issue of shares R 317947500 - - - 317947500

Share issue expense RipgiTR% (18,018,450) - - - (18,018,450)

Repurchase of shares BERR 29 (3,589,720) - - - (3,589,720)

Share-based payments SARRAD A ERERT3R 31 - 5496410 - - 5496410

Dividends paid BERRE (215,341,620) - - (24,000,000) (239,341,620)

Proposed final dividend B ABRE 13 16,741,620) - - 16,741,620 -

At 31 December 2010 R-E-ZEF+-A=1-H 265,635,986 10,131,740  (36,567893) 16,741,620 255,941,453

EREREEERAA
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30. RESERVES (continued)

106

(C)

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1V)

(V)

SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 3(b) to the financial
statements.

INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets held at the end of the reporting period
and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy in note 3(i) to the financial statements.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT RESERVE

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair
value of the equity instruments granted under the share
purchase plan to directors and employees and the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to directors, employees and
business partners recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments
in note 3(s) to the financial statements.

STATUTORY RESERVES

The statutory reserves, which are non-distributable, are
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the Group's
PRC and Macau subsidiaries under the applicable laws
and regulations in the PRC and Macau respectively.
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 31. LR AEBIK

SHARE PURCHASE PLAN

On 30 November 2009, the Company operated a share purchase
plan for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
directors and employees of the Group (the “Eligible Employees”)
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations (the
“Share Purchase Plan”).

The Share Purchase Plan provides Eligible Employees with the
ability to purchase the Company’s ordinary shares at a discount to
the current market value. Under the Share Purchase Plan, 160,000
or 16% of the ordinary shares of the Company (the “Reward
Shares"”) were transferred by the then sole shareholder of the
Company, Showmost, to Full Mission Limited (“Full Mission"”) at
a consideration of HK$35,458,579 on 30 November 2009. The
consideration was fully paid on and settled by a sixxmonth bridging
loan interest-bearing at 5% per annum of the same amount,
granted by Showmost to Full Mission (the “Bridging Loan") on
the same date.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group recognised
a share-based payment expense with an aggregate amount of
HK$4,635,330, which comprises (i) the discount provided to
Eligible Employees for the purchase of the Reward Shares of
HK$4,103,451, being the difference between the fair value of
the Reward Shares at the grant date and the consideration paid;
and (i) a fair value loss of HK$531,879 on the Bridging Loan
granted for the purpose of acquiring the Reward Shares, being
the difference between the fair value and the nominal value of
the Bridging Loan.

The fair value of the Reward Shares was determined as
HK$39,562,030 at the grant date and was measured by an
independent valuer using the market-based approach. Under the
market-based approach, the fair value of the Reward Shares was
determined by reference to the appropriate value multiples of
similar listed companies, which includes the price to earning ratio,
price to sales ratio and the price to book ratio, with a marketability
discount of 33% and a discount of 5% per year for transfer
restrictions in relation to the lock-up arrangements.

The fair value of the Bridging Loan was determined by the directors
of the Company using the effective interest rate method by
discounting the nominal amount of the Bridging Loan using an
applicable interest rate. The applicable interest rate is estimated
by reference to the interest rate which would have been charged
to the Eligible Employees as if the Bridging loan were obtained
from financial institutions.
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31.

108

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
10 March 2010. The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives
or rewards to the eligible participants for their contribution to the
Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Company and its subsidiaries. Eligible participants include the
directors, employees, suppliers, customers, consultants, advisers,
managers, officers or entities that provide research, development
and other technological support to the Company, the Company'’s
subsidiaries and other entities in which the Company holds any
equity interest. The Scheme became effective on 10 March 2010
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options permitted
to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon
their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
immediately following the completion of the global offering of the
Company (i.e. 112,175,000 shares), unless the Company obtains
approval from the shareholders in general meeting to refresh such
limit for a further 10% of share in issue as at the date of approval
of the refreshment. The maximum number of shares issuable
under share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of shares
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting.

Far East Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2010
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 31. MR AERSIR )

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval by the independent non-executive directors. In
addition, where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates would result in the securities issued and
to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and
to be granted to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time and with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company'’s shares at the date of the
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, such further grant is subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of the offer of the
share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company's shares on the date of
the offer of share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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31.

110

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (cContinuead) 31. AR ABERSR @)
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) IR E < B IR e Bl ()
Details of the movements of the share options granted are as B ERE  FEFFBNT ¢
follows:
Number of share options
EREYR
Exercise Outstanding at Grant Lapsed Outstanding at
Type of price per 1 January during during 31 December
participants Date of grant  Vlesting period Exercisable period share 2010 the year the year 2010
R=B-%% RZB-2F
-A-H +=A=t-H
SEERR Riti S GRS iy gRITHEE AT ERR FREX R ATHE
HKS
BT
Chief executive 27 July 2010 27 July 2010 to 29 June 2011 to 0.65 - 8,750,000 - 8750,000
directorand ~ —Z—T4F 28 June 2011 28 June 2020
chairman tA=+tR ZE-EFtA-+t+AE —F—F A-TNRZE
TREARER “E——FRA-TNR  ZEZEERA-TNA
27 July 2010 29 June 2011 to 29 June 2012 to 0.65 - 8,750,000 - 8750,000
—ZT-%F 28 June 2012 28 June 2020
+A=t++H ‘ﬁ——iﬁﬂ‘+ﬂﬁi - AZThHEE
“E——FRAZTNR ZEZEERA-TNA
27 July 2010 29 June 2012 to 29 June 2013 to 0.65 - 8,750,000 - 8750,000
—ZT-%F 28 June 2013 28 June 2020
tA-++A =% _EAH +hBE —Z—=F~A-tNBZE
“E-=FAA-TNR  ZEZEERA-TNA
27 July 2010 29 June 2013 to 29 June 2014 to 0.65 - 8,750,000 - 8750,000
—ZT-%F 28 June 2014 28 June 2020
tA-++A =% _EAH +hEE ZE-mESAZTNAAZ
T-NERAZTN\E Z—Z-FEXA-t\H
Other executive 29 June 2010 29 June 2010 to 29 June 2011 to 0.65 - 1,200,000 - 1,200,000
directors —ZT-TF 28 June 2011 28 June 2020
HbHiTES NAZThE ZE-ZE5A-TNAE —B2——%~A-tNAZE
“E——FRA-TNR  ZEZEERA-TNA
29 June 2010 29 June 2011 to 29 June 2012 to 0.65 - 1,200,000 - 1,200,000
—ZT-%F 28 June 2012 28 June 2020
~AZTHE ‘“——iﬁﬂ‘+n5i i S =K
“E——FRAZTNR ZEZEERA-TNA
29 June 2010 29 June 2012 to 29 June 2013 to 0.65 - 1,200,000 - 1,200,000
—ZT-%F 28 June 2013 28 June 2020
NAZTHhB ZE-Z§5A=TNAE —B-Z%~A-tNAZE
“E-=FAA-TNR  ZEZEERA-TNA
29 June 2010 29 June 2013 to 29 June 2014 to 0.65 - 1,200,000 - 1,200,000

“T-TF 28 June 2014 28 June 2020
NAZTNR ZE-Z&/AZTNEE ZE-REAAZTNARZ
“E-MEAAZTNE  ZE-ZENAZTAB

Far East Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2010
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

31. AR BERAR
B A5 B B AR AT 81 (42

Number of share options

K (&)

BREHA
Exercise Outstanding at Grant Lapsed Outstanding at
Type of price per 1 January during during 31 December
participants Date of grant  Vesting period Exercisable period share 2010 the year the year 2010
R=2-%% R=Z-%F
-A-H +ZA=t-H
SEEEH REAH HEH T8 gRITEE I R AT ERR EREA e R AT
HKS
BT
Business 29 June 2010 N/A 29 June 2011 to 0.65 - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
partners —2-TF TER 28 June 2020
E3y e ~AZThE ZE—E AZTNhHEZE
ZZCRERAZTAR
29 June 2010 N/A 29 June 2012 to 0.65 - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
%% TER 28 June 2020
~NAZTAR “T-—ExXA-thAZE
Sy s Y1\
PRC employees 29 June 2010 29 June 2010 to 29 June 2011 to 0.65 - 6,305,500 (96,500) 6,209,000
hElES —2-%F 28 June 2011 28 June 2020
NAZThE ZE-ZFRA-+NAZE —E——F A-tNAZ
“T——EXA-+N\B —Z-EERA-1/\R
29 June 2010 29 June 2011 to 29 June 2012 to 0.65 - 6,305,500 (96,5000 6,209,000
%% 28 June 2012 28 June 2020
NAZTHhE ZE—%xAZTNAE —F-Z§~A-tNAZE
“E-TFRAZ +/\H “ZoRERAZ ‘i‘/\H
Other employees 29 June 2010 29 June 2010 to 29 June 2011 to 0.65 - 12,941,000 (112,5000 12,828,500
HiES %% 28 June 2011 28 June 2020
NAZThE ZE-ZFRA-+NAZE —F——F A-tNAZ
“T——EXA-+N\B —Z-EERA-1/\R
29 June 2010 29 June 2011 to 29 June 2012 to 0.65 - 12,941,000 (112,500) 12,828,500
%% 28 June 2012 28 June 2020
NAZTHhE ZE—%/AZTNAE ZF-Z§~A-tNAZE
“E-TFRAZ +/\H “ZoRERAZ ‘i‘/\H
29 June 2010 29 June 2012 to 29 June 2013 to 0.65 - 12,941,000 (112,500) 12,828,500
%% 28 June 2013 28 June 2020
NAZTHhE B/ AZTNAE —F-=§~A-tNAZE
“E-=FXAZTN\B  ZE-EESA-tN\H
29 June 2010 29 June 2013 to 29 June 2014 to 0.65 - 12,941,000 (112,500) 12,828,500
%% 28 June 2014 28 June 2020
~NAZTAR ig_fiﬂﬂ +hBEE —E-mEXA-TNAZ
T-PESA-TNE —Z-ZEXSA-tAH
- 112,175,000 (643,000) 111,532,000
ERBEREFERA A m
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31.

12

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

If the options remain unexercised after a period of 10 years from
the date of grant, the options expire.

Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before
the options vest.

Options granted to business partners were incentives for helping
the Group expand its business network, acquire and explore new
business projects and opportunities. The fair value of such benefit
could not be estimated reliably and as a result, their fair values
are measured by reference to the fair value of share options
granted.

The estimated fair value of the shares options at the grant date on
29 June 2010 and 27 July 2010 is HK$12,256,004 and HK$8,619,188
respectively.

Equity-settled share-based payment expense of HK$5,496,410 has
been recognised for these share options during the year ended
31 December 2010.

The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes Model. The
inputs into the model are as follows:

31.

LR BERSRE)

DIz 2 RS 8 (F)
T FE AR A IO X ) B AR AT 10618 M R 1T 62 + R
B KRR -

HEBNBREREABEFAKE - AIRBARE
ORI -

BRIEBRHEZBRET L REG A EE R
AEXBRSE BRISRYMEHEHER REZK
M4 T 228 - ZFE M2 A FERER ML
At MERXFED2RAREEREZ AFE

SHE -

R_E—ZFRNA-_T+IhBER-_ZT—ZFFLAH
“t+tBAZEBREBE  BREZEFATEES
BllA12,256,0047% 7T %8,619, 18878 JT °

HE - ZT-—FTFE+_A=+—HILEERNHZ
SHERENEREE RO BERNRZAX
/55,496,410 7T °

ATETARRS — RETERE & o 3 AR
ZEARRET

Share option granted on Share option granted on

29 June 2010 27 July 2010

REZB—ZF REZB—ZF

ANB=t+hB +tA=++tH

R ZBRE R 2 BRE

Weighted average share price IEFEHRE 0.634 0.784

Exercise price 178 0.650 0.650

Expected volatility THERR 18 46.237% — 49.434% 45.808% — 48.307%

Expected life TEETEEA 2 — 4 years®F 2 — 4 years®F

Risk free rate 2B 1| == 0.796% - 1.416% 0.554% - 1.100%

Expected dividend yield TE AR B 3.426% 2.785%
As the Company was newly listed since March 2010, there were HARARRN_ZE—ZTF=A#H LM &

no sufficient trading records to make reference of the volatility of
the Company's share price. Therefore, the expected volatility was
based on the historical volatility of the share prices of comparable
companies over the periods that are equal to the expected lives
of the share options.

The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
the Group's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

Far East Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2010
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(A)

(B)

32. AAREE

GROUP (A) =&E@E
Group
REE
2010 2009
—E-EF —TTAF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Guarantees under performance Ti2&RIMEL
bonds for construction IREKPELR
contracts 688,467,671 624,535,911
COMPANY (B) &AF

At 31 December 2010, the Company has issued the
following financial guarantees:

R=-F-FF+_A=+—0 ARAE
{EHTFHISRIEIR -

Company
b NN
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Corporate guarantees for R T —EHBARIMERITEER
banking facilities {EH B R RIER
granted to a subsidiary 469,600,000 287,000,000

At 31 December 2010, the directors of the Company
do not consider it probable that a claim will be made
against the Company under the above guarantees.
The maximum liability of the Company under above
guarantees at 31 December 2010 is HK$93,768,240 (2009:
HK$89,191,363).

The fair value of the financial guarantees at date of
inception is not material and is not recognised in the
financial statements.

R-E—TFE+-_A=+—08 ARA=E
ETRAERARAIREEHRE Ll ERMER
8o RIEEMER  RARAIR_T—TF
T+ A=+—HB& &= & & /93,768,240
BIL(ZZTZNEF £ 89,191,36387T) °
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B R SRR R o
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33.

14

LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2010 the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable
as follows

33.

HERE

RZZE—ZF+_A=1+—8 RETAIRH
REMERMNMARKERSNFBENAT

2010 2009

—E-2F ZETNF

HK$ HK$

BT 7SI

Within one year —FR 5,989,057 8,201,958
In the second year F_4F 3,646,868 4,183,354
9,635,925 12,385,312

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its officers, factories and staff quarters. Leases are
negotiated for a term ranging from one to five years and rentals
are fixed over the lease terms and do not include contingent
rentals.

Far East Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2010
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with its related parties during the year:

(A) TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

34. BEALRS

BRMBREEMEOBRENBEALRZIR
BRI AEBRFRNEEREATETTT
RS

(A) HEEATHRS

Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Purchase of materials from ERAVNGI=E &L
related companies controlled TR BIEHIEY
by a close family member BENEEEYR
of a beneficial shareholder
of the Company:
Bon Pacific Building EEV) WS DS )
Materials (H.K.) Company (BB)BRAT
Limited (note (i) (B=EG) 3,205,240 8,576,362
Gortech Trading Company EEESERAT
Limited (note (i) (B=EGD) 76,514 705,425
Design fee paid to a related AR R —BESZEHIA
company controlled by a BEARSZ MR EA
director of the Company (BEEG)
(note (ii)) - 2,426,918
Corporate guarantees issued —REFEHEEAR
by a related company AR E B B AR EK
controlled by a director EE AR EIER
for performance bonds CBRFREG) B (iii))
of the Group
(note (ii) & (iii) - 39,480,000
EREREEERAT | 45

“E-ZEER
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(B) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

34.

BEALTRS )
(B) BEEA L&

Group
KEE
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
HK$ HKS
BT 7SI
Trade payables: B IR
Bon Pacific Building Materials ~ SRiNAF¥FZEME
(H.K.) Company Limited (BAB)BRAR
(note (i) (B &EG)) - 1,505,504
Gortech Trading Company BB SHR AT
Limited (note (i) (B &EG)) - 273,030
- 1,778,534
(C) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (C) EEEBAEHE
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—Z-ZF —ZETNF
HK$ HK$
BT 7SI
Short term employee benefits %2 #i{E E & F 17,494,063 8,270,450
Share-based payments LA B ELRRE T3 2,302,725 3,058,449
Post-employment benefits KILEARER 545,098 319,476
20,341,886 11,648,375

116
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34.

35.

36.

37.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(C) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

(Continued)
Note:

(i) Mr. Tsang Lik Chung, a beneficial shareholder of the Company
who has significant influence over the Company, is interested in
the transactions to the extent that his son, Mr. Tsang King Fung,
is a beneficial shareholder of the related companies, Bon Pacific
Building Materials (H.K.) Company Limited and Gortech Trading
Company Limited. After the completion of global offering of
the Company on 30 March 2010, the beneficial shareholder,
Mr Tsang Lik Chung, held less than 20% shareholdings in the
Company. As a result, the directors considered that Bon Pacific
Building Materials (H.K.) Company Limited and Gortech Trading
Company Limited ceased to be related parties of the Group
since 30 March 2010 as Mr. Tsang Lik Chung ceased to have
significant influence over the Group since then.

(i)~ Mr. Huang Guangyu, a non-executive director of the Company,
is interested in the transaction to the extent that he is the
controlling shareholder of the related company, Xi‘an Yuanheng
Aluminium Works Company Limited. Mr. Huang Guangyu's
equity interests in Xi‘an Yuanheng Aluminium Works Company
Limited was disposed of to an independent third party on 8
December 2009.

(il The corporate guarantee was released on 20 February 2010.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 8 November 2010, the Group entered into an agreement
to acquire a property located in Hong Kong at a consideration
of HK$48,580,000 out of which HK$4,858,000 was paid during
the year ended 31 December 2010. The remaining balance of
HK$43,722,000 was paid upon completion of the acquisition on
15 February 2011.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
to the current year's presentation. The changes included the
reclassification of net foreign exchange gains previously classified
under administrative expenses to other income. The new
classification of the accounting items was considered to provide
a more appropriate presentation of the Group’s results.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2011.

34.

35.

36.

37.
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GEE
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Five-Year Financial Summary

FFFE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE =T —ZEF+-_A=+—HILFE

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY EFEMBEE

The table set out below summarises the results and the assets, liabilites TXRB#IAEERBERAENBFEZEERE
and minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as &= BERIHBRREHME - DESFBEAEEE
extracted from the Group's published consolidated financial statements ~ BAFE 2 BE A& M HHKRE  WEBH EH 5D
of the respective years and restated/reclassified as appropriate. This 28 (20 A ) o AN 2 W FEAL T AZ B 75 3 3% < (E W &6

summary is not part of the audited financial statements. o °
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
B2 —TTAF 2ENF ETtF TETNHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T T Ti#R FHT
Revenue/Turnover WA/ a8 886,664 860,192 1,284,709 658,641 885,109
Gross profit EH 225,671 192,153 253,127 82,884 67885
Profit before tax B A 137487 98,416 139,605 26,217 20,478
Profit attributable to owners KARHEBA
of the Company IR 110,113 74,288 104,993 25,043 18,379
Basic earnings per share
(HK cents) (Note) FRREARRM CEAL) (%) 10.45 8.74 12.35 2.95 2.16
Diluted earnings per share
(HK cents) BRESERF (OBIL) 10.37 N/A i A N/AR i A N/A i A N/ATER
Non-current assets FRBEE 83,279 72,910 79,302 86,154 50,481
Current assets MEEE 749,843 729,276 818,439 415,943 412,852
Current liabilities mEEE 311,807 462,217 594,203 304,752 292,814
Net assets BEFE 521,315 339,969 303,538 197,345 170,519
Note: For comparison purpose, the basic earnings per share for each of the [z : AELER  MER-ZTESFE_TTNFFF
years from 2006 to 2009 as indicated is derived by dividing the profit EZEREARBF TDIRARBHEE A B TR
attributable to owners of the Company by 850,000,000 shares, being 850,000,000/ % 1n + AIBEHE —ZT—ZTF= AXAR
the number of shares in issue after the capitalisation issue immediately AIRMN BIRBEERETEMEETER ZEZETRGD
before the global offering of the shares of the Company in March A -
2010.
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Corporate Information
ARER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

HUANG Brad

KWOK Yeung Kwong
KO Chuk Kin, Herbert
CHIU Lok Man

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
HUANG Guangyu

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ZHOU Jinsong
YEN Homer Shih Hung
HONG Winn

COMPANY SECRETARY
LAM Tin Faat, FCCA, FCPA, ACA

AUDIT COMMITTEE

ZHOU Jinsong, CPA (Chairman)
HONG Winn
YEN Homer Shih Hung

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

ZHOU Jinsong, CPA (Chairman)
HONG Winn

YEN Homer Shih Hung

HUANG Brad

KWOK Yeung Kwong

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

ZHOU Jinsong, CPA (Chairman)
HONG Winn

YEN Homer Shih Hung
HUANG Brad

KWOK Yeung Kwong

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Ltd.

AUDITOR

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
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Corporate Information
ARER

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

PO. Box 309
Ugland House
Grand Cayman
KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

IN HONG KONG

16th Floor, Eight Commercial Tower
8 Sun Yip Street

Chai Wan

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Maples FS Limited
(Formerly known as Maples Finance Limited)
PO. Box 1093
Queensgate House
Grand Cayman
KY1-1102
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
26/F, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen's Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

KWOK Yeung Kwong
LAMTin Faat

CORPORATE WEBSITE

www.fareastglobal.com
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